
AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE 
COMMITTEE

10.00 am

FRIDAY
8 0000 2022

MEETING PAPERS



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
TIME: 10.00 am
DATE: Friday 8 April 2022
VENUE: Cabinet Suite, Shire Hall, Gloucester

A G E N D A

ITEM TOPIC CONTACT

1.  Apologies Andrea 
Griffiths

2.  Declarations of Interest Andrea 
Griffiths

3.  Public Questions 
To answer any written public questions about matters which are 
within the powers and duties of the Audit & Governance 
Committee.  Up to 30 minutes is allowed for this item. 

The closing date for receipt of questions is 10am on Friday 1st 
April 2022.  Please send questions for the attention of Andrea 
Griffiths

Andrea 
Griffiths

4.  Member Questions 
To answer any written member questions about matters which are 
within the powers and duties of the Audit & Governance 
Committee.  Up to 30 minutes is allowed for this item. 

The closing date for receipt of questions is 10am on Friday 1st 
April 2022.  Please send questions for the attention of Andrea 
Griffiths

Andrea 
Griffiths

5.  Minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 1 - 10)
The Committee is asked to approve the minutes of the previous 
meeting held on the 21st January 2022.  

Andrea 
Griffiths

6.  Grant Thornton Audit Plan for GCC & Pension Fund (Pages 11 
- 58)
The Committee are asked to note the reports. Alex Walling

7.  Grant Thornton Audit Progress Report (Pages 59 - 76)
The Committee is asked to note the report. Alex Walling



8.  Risk Management Review Report (Pages 77 - 96)
The Committee is asked to note the report.  Piyush Fatania

9.  Draft Internal Audit Plan 2022/23 (Pages 97 - 108)
The Committee is asked to approve the 2022/23 Internal Audit 
Plan.

Piyush Fatania

10.  Internal Audit Activity Progress Report (Pages 109 - 134)
The Committee is asked to note the report. Piyush Fatania

NOTES

(a) MEMBERSHIP – Councillors Cllr Matt Babbage, Cllr John Bloxsom, 
Cllr Stephan Fifield, Cllr Colin Hay, Cllr Alex Hegenbarth, Cllr Stephen Hirst, 
Cllr Alan Preest, Cllr Brian Tipper, Cllr Chloe Turner, Cllr Susan Williams and 
Cllr Dr David Willingham and David Clowes (Independent Person).

(b) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification 
about whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the 
Monitoring Officer: Rob Ayliffe 01452 328506/e-mail: 
rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk prior to the commencement of the meeting. 

GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the 
meeting please leave as directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the 
assembly point which is outside the main entrance to Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  
Please remain there and await further instructions.

mailto:rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 -

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
MINUTES of the meeting of the Audit and Governance Committee held virtually on 
Friday 21 January 2022 commencing at 10.00 am.  

PRESENT
MEMBERSHIP:

Cllr Matt Babbage
Cllr John Bloxsom
David Clowes 
Cllr Stephan Fifield (Vice-
Chair)
Cllr Colin Hay (Chairman)

Cllr Stephen Hirst
Cllr Brian Tipper
Cllr Chloe Turner
Cllr Susan Williams
Cllr Dr David Willingham

Substitutes:

Apologies: Cllr Alex Hegenbarth and Cllr Alan Preest

1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of interest were made.

2. PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

No public questions were received.

3. MEMBER QUESTIONS 

No member questions were received.

4. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

Resolved 

That the minutes of the meeting held on the 28th September 2021 were 
approved as a correct record.

5. GRANT THORNTON AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 

David Johnson, Manager, Grant Thornton presented the report, which detailed the 
progress Grant Thornton (GT) had made in delivering their responsibilities as the 
external auditors.  

Members were advised that GT had been unable to issue the certificate to close the 
audit as the following areas had yet to be completed:

- Issuing of the Auditor’s Annual Report summarising their work on the 
Council’s value for money arrangements

Page 1

Agenda Item 5



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

- Audit and submission of the Whole of Government Accounts return. GT were 
still waiting for the NAO to issue the testing guidance and would  inform 
members of any findings when this work was completed.

It was explained that the objection work in relation to the Waste PFI Contract was 
now completed and as a result GT had been able to issue the certificates, signalling 
the closing of the accounts, and the VfM conclusion for all audit years from 2016/17 
to 2019/20. 

In response to a question, members were advised that the signing of the statement 
of accounts deadline would now be the 30th November 2022.  The Chair wished to 
extend his thanks to the GCC Finance Team and GT for completing the accounts in 
a timely manner during the pandemic.  

Members questioned the recent cyber attack at Gloucester City Council and 
requested confirmation that GCC systems were regularly backed up.  Officers 
explained that Gloucester City Council were still analysing the nature of the attack.  
Members were reassured that business continuity was under active review,  as a 
matter of course.  The Executive Director of Corporate Resources advised the 
Committee that the cyber attack was wider than local Government and additional 
work was already being undertaken and information would be shared through 
emergency planning procedures. A contingency was incorporated into the MTFS to 
invest, strengthen and recognise the risks.  

During the discussion, it was requested for the benefit of new members that 
additional information relating to the service review tables on page 23 of the report 
be circulated.  (Action – DJ)

Resolved 

That the report be noted.

6. TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 

Paul Blacker, Director of Finance presented the proposed Capital Strategy, 
Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Investment Strategy for 2022/23, 
which met the CIPFA Code of Practice, and governed how the Authority undertook 
Treasury Management activities.  It was noted that the Committee was required to 
consider and comment on the proposed strategies for 2022/23, including the 
Minimum Revenue Provision Policy.

It was noted that the strategy would be approved by full Council as part of the 
Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) and was being submitted to the Audit and 
Governance Committee in accordance with its terms of reference to regularly 
monitor the Council’s Treasury Management policy and practices.

Members were reminded that details of the Investments within the strategy were 
covered in detail at the Treasury Management training session provided by 
Arlingclose on the 14th January 2022.  

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

IN response to a question, members were informed that Fire was possibly the 
largest PFI Contract and waste was included as a lease within the reported figures.  
The Executive Director accepted this was a fair challenge and explained that large 
contracts were regularly reviewed to ensure the appropriate insurances were in 
place.   The Committee requested further information on PFI contracts at a future 
meeting.  

Ethical Investment Policies were raised during the discussion, members welcomed 
the decision to not invest in fossil fuel funds.  The Director of Finance explained 
there was no formal Ethical Investments Policy in place at the moment.  Members 
wondered if the investment policy could be extended to include the exclusion of 
tobacco, pornography, gambling, etc.  The Director of Finance explained the 
investment policy was only applied to fossil fuels and there was no one clear 
definition of Environmental, Social & Governance (ESG).  He advised members that 
the new prudential code for 2023/24 would consider ESG issues in more detail.  
The Committee felt it would be beneficial for officers to liaise with other councils, in 
order to gain further clarity on ethical investments.  

Resolved 

That the Capital Strategy, Treasury Management Strategy Statement and 
Investment Strategy 2022/23 be commended for approval by Council.  

7. ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT ACTION PLAN UPDATE 

Darren Skinner, Head of Planning, Performance & Improvement, presented the 
report. The Committee were also asked to consider if there were any further 
assurances they would like considered in the AGS for 2021/22.  

The Council Annual Governance Statement (AGS)  2020/21 included 7 actions to 
further enhance governance arrangements. This report included the up to date 
position on each action as provided by the specific lead officers and/or their 
nominated representatives.

The report provided assurance to the Audit and Governance Committee that the 
improvement actions identified as part of the annual review of the governance 
arrangements operating within GCC had been/were being addressed.  It was 
recommended that the Committee reviewed and considered the actions taken to 
address the governance improvement areas identified.

It was noted as an update to the AGS, the Committee had agreed that relevant 
action owners or their nominated representative attend the Committee Meeting to 
provide an update and respond to member queries on the following areas: 

 Members referred to page 73 of the report and the questioned the 20% agency 
workforce figure.   The Director of Partnerships & Strategy explained the agency 
staff figure had increased slightly due to the number of case work loads, vacancies 

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

and staff turnover.  It was recognised that the delay in the Ofsted Inspection 
compounded this issue further.

During the discussion, members queried the significant overspend of children’s 
services and felt that there was something inherently wrong with the funding levels.  
The Director explained that that additional resources and funding had been inputted 
into the service since 2016/17, this was in order to turn around a legacy of poor 
practice.  He informed members there was a national increase in the number of 
children in care and the Government changes to the unregulated placements had 
an adverse impact on the service area.  Also the inadequate Ofsted rating brought 
a lack of confidence in the service, which impacted on the recruitment of staff.  
Members were reminded that Covid had reduced the availability of care 
placements, therefore the costs had accelerated.  

The Executive Director explained that the Authority could not set volatile budgets 
and it was necessary to do the best estimate with the information that was available 
at that time.  There were no contingency funds and the money would have to be 
taken from another service area, therefore under and over spends were managed 
across the Council.  It was recognised this was a national issue.  Officers hoped 
that the Ofsted Inspection would take place sooner rather than later as the service 
needed to move forward on its improvement journey.  

Members recognised and shared officers concerns and agreed there were 
structural and systemic issues to overcome.  
Resolved 

That the Committee reviewed the progress made against the key issues and 
noted the report.    

8. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY STATEMENT AND STRATEGY 2022-2025 

The Head of Planning, Performance and Improvement presented the report in 
detail.   It was explained the RMPS&S 2022-2025 was a vital part of the Council’s 
governance framework, and failure to review and update it regularly meant it would 
become out of date.

It was reported there had been no significant changes to the overall risk 
management framework represented in the strategy, but the revised document 
reflected updated roles and responsibilities, especially in regard to the move of Risk 
Management ownership from Internal Audit (ARA) to the Planning, Performance 
and Change Service.   It also reflected some of the improvements made in the 
alignment of performance and risk information, and the revised role of the GCC 
Risk Management Group.

The Committee were advised that an independent Risk Management review was 
currently being undertaken, as a result there could be additional actions required. A 
separate report on this review would be presented to next committee meeting.  

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

During the discussion, it was noted that Risk management was constitutionally 
difficult to grasp and required both Audit & Governance and the appropriate scrutiny 
committee to monitor this element.  In terms of this committee it was a question of 
‘How things were being done’ and for scrutiny the question was ‘why things were 
done’.  It was agreed that a Risk Management Training Session would be beneficial 
to develop members understanding.  (Action: DS/AG).

Members welcomed this approach given the split responsibilities between 
committee’s, they felt this would widen their understanding and ensure that nothing 
fell through the gap.  

Resolved

That the Committee fully endorsed the revised Risk Management Policy 
Statement and Strategy 2022-2025.

9. INTERNAL AUDIT ACTIVITY PROGRESS REPORT 

Piyush Fatania, Head of Audit Risk Assurance (ARA) presented the report which 
informed members on the progress of the internal audit activity in relation to the 
2021/2022 Revised Internal Audit Plan and provided a progress report on the 
internal audit outcomes from the period October to December 2021 including the 
opinions provided on risk and control.  

In response to a question, it was explained that checks on bank accounts were 
carried out to ensure there validity in order to prevent payment errors.

Members were advised that all priority one audits would be completed this year, the 
delay in some cases was due to officer availability during the pandemic.  The Head 
of ARA wished to congratulate the team on their efforts throughout the lockdown 
period and their resourceful methods of working in order to undertake the 
scheduled audits.    

Resolved 

That the Committee noted the report.  

10. GFRS: INTERNAL AUDIT FINAL PROGRESS REPORT 

The Head of ARA presented the report and advised the Committee that the purpose 
of the report was to provide assurance to the Audit and Governance Committee that 
the Internal Audit recommendations made in relation to the independent 
investigation of GFRS had been addressed.  The Committee noted this was the 
final progress report and the Improvement Board had signed off all of the 124 
actions.    

Officers explained in the context, procurement had a wider corporate impact and 
was being dealt with by Internal Audit and would carry this piece of work forward 
going into 2022/23.  

Page 5



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 6 -

Mark Preece, Chief Fire Officer wished to thank GFRS staff for their extenuating 
efforts to complete all of recommendations.  

During the discussion, members questioned the human resource matters in terms 
of gender balance and diversity.  The Chief Fire Officer explained that GFRS had a 
highest proportion of female staff but he accepted more work was needed to be 
done in order to recruit from ethnic backgrounds and more work was done in the 
local community to build those positive relationships going forward.  

In response to a question, it was explained feedback forms were completed and 
generally internal audit was well received, the results were used their own 
performance management.  The Executive Director explained as the Section 151 
officer he relied on Internal Audit for assurance and the feedback received was 
largely positive.  

The Chief Fire Officer advised the Committee that the Fire Service had its own 
inspectorate and Internal Audit worked collaboratively in accordance with the work 
pressures and this was greatly appreciated.  

Resolved 

That the Committee noted the final progress report.  

11. LIMITED ASSURANCE REPORT 

Philip Williams, Lead Commissioner for Community Infrastructure presented the 
report in detail and advised the Committee that recommendation 4 was outstanding 
and he expected this work to be completed by the end of March 2022.  

Members read the report with interest and recognised that there was a life 
expectancy in terms of the assets given the various compounds..  It was explained 
the new signals were installed with LED lights and had a longer life expectancy, 
therefore assets needed to be resilient and maintainable.   

Liz Kirkham, Highways Operations Manager informed the Committee that they had 
been successful in securing a bid for an additional £250k, which would cover 
existing planned works for 2022/23.  

Resolved 

That the report be noted.  

12. ANTI BRIBERY POLICY & MONEY LAUNDERING POLICY 

 The Director Finance advised the Committee that the policy was updated to take 
account of the Criminal Finances Act 2017 and the Money Laundering Regulations 

Page 6



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 7 -

2017.    It was noted this report was last presented to the Committee on the 6th April 
2018.

Members noted that Internal Audit and Strategic Finance had worked together to 
produce an Anti Money Laundering Policy to raise awareness within the 
organisation of the responsibilities of all employees as well as providing guidance 
on how concerns should be raised.  

Resolved 

That the report be noted.  

13. GCC COMPLAINTS: POLICY, SYSTEM & CULTURE 

Rob Ayliffe, Monitoring Officer presented a brief overview of the Council’s 
arrangements for handling complaints and assured Members that appropriate 
processes were in place.  

The Committee were asked to consider the Council’s arrangements for handling 
complaints and considers whether it wishes to make and comments or 
recommendations on those arrangements.

The Monitoring Officer recognised the Complaints team did a great job and the 
majority of complaints were resolved informally at stage 1.  The Committee were 
reminded that this item was also closely linked with the next agenda item, Local 
Government & Social Care Ombudsman (LG&SO) Annual Review Letter.  

It was confirmed that the team dealt with compliments too and perhaps that should 
also be highlighted.  Members were advised that compliments were recorded within 
the annual report and were shared with the relevant Directors and Heads of 
Service.  

Member’s attention was drawn to the various complaint stages as detailed on page 
172 of the report.  The Committee recognised the number of complaints upheld by 
the LG&SO had increased since 2016/17.  Officers explained that some faults were 
dismissed by the LG&SO as the appropriate complaints procedures had not 
necessarily been followed by the complainant.  The Monitoring Officer explained 
that service area reports on the number of complaints were also presented to the 
appropriate scrutiny committee.  

The varying levels of complaints were clarified for the benefit of the Committee.  It 
was noted that management would continue to monitor the number of complaints 
and that GCC was in a similar position to other authorities.  

It was recognised that some complaints, while handled appropriately, would 
continue to escalate if the complainant did not get the outcome they wanted.  The 
Complaints Manager explained that his team had extensive knowledge and had a 
good culture of openness and responsiveness.  

Page 7



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 8 -

Members referred to the public interest report, officers explained that lessons had 
been learnt and structures were now in place.  It was noted that statutory officers 
had oversight of the complaints process and the legal team added value to the 
process.  

Resolved 

That the Committee noted the report.

14. LOCAL GOVERNMENT & SOCIAL CARE OMBUDSMAN'S ANNUAL REVIEW 
LETTER 

Bonnie Styles, Principal Lawyer presented the report which detailed the Council’s 
arrangements for handling complaints and investigations by the Local Government 
Ombudsman (LGO).  Members were referred to the table on page 179 of the report, 
which gave a summary of the complaints for 2020/21.  

It was noted that out of the 56 complaints, 20 detailed investigations were carried 
out. Of the 20, 9 were not upheld and 11 were upheld by the LGO. The 11 upheld 
cases were all resolved in accordance with the LGO’s recommendations.  

Members were informed that GCC took all complaints seriously and learnt from 
them and were regularly reviewed by Chief Executive, Monitoring Officer and the 
Chief Finance Officer.  

Resolved

That the report be noted.    

15. WHISTLE BLOWING ANNUAL REPORT 

The report was presented by the Monitoring Officer and it was explained that the 
whistleblowing policy allowed for concerns to be raised at three levels: 
- Level 1- In the first instance, employees were encouraged to raise concerns 

with their line manager or team leader
- Level 2 - If they felt unable to do this, they could raise the matter with any of 

the following:  their Head of Service, Assistant Director, Director or Executive 
Director; the Chief Internal Auditor; the Head of Human Resources; the 
Assistant Director of Legal Services; (in the case of schools) the Director of 
Education.

- Level 3 - If concerns remained, or were so serious that the individual does 
not want to discuss them with any of the above, they could be raised directly 
with the Monitoring Officer.

The Committee were advised at present the number of Level 1 concerns were 
unknown. The Monitoring Officer was undertaking an exercise so those figures 
could be logged and monitored.  It was noted that whistle blowers tended to remain 

Page 8



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 9 -

anonymous, which had its own issues as there was no way of contacting them to 
obtain additional information if required.  

In response to a question, it was explained that it was not possible to compare the 
number of concerns with other authorities, as all authorities captured the 
information differently and involved a number of assumptions.

Some members felt the term ‘whistleblowing’ had its own connotations, the MO 
explained that it had been rebranded to ‘Speak up if it’s not right’ and this had been 
communicated to staff throughout the organisation.  

Resolved

That the report be noted

16. MEMBER CODE OF CONDUCT ANNUAL REPORT 

The Monitoring Officer presented the report in detail and explained that in March 
2021 this Committee agreed that we should work with Gloucestershire’s District 
Councils towards the development of a common Code of Conduct for 
Gloucestershire, based on the Model Code produced by the Local Government 
Association (LGA).

The Committee were made aware that progress on this has been stalled by a 
number of factors, most notably, an extremely high level of turnover amongst 
Monitoring Officers at District level.  This inevitably made it difficult to secure 
commitment and continuity. However, in December a way forward was agreed and 
the MO was optimistic that significant progress towards developing a draft Code by 
March 2022, which could then form the basis of consultation with our respective 
Councils and with local Parish and Town Councils.

Members were advised that the MO officer had two independent persons he could 
consult with if required, and their roles were invaluable and most helpful.  

Resolved 

That the report be noted.  

17. APPOINTMENT OF EXTERNAL AUDITORS FOR STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 

The Director of Finance explained the report outlined options for the appointment of 
the Council’s external audits for a five year period commencing with the 2023/24 
Statement of Accounts and allow the Committee to recommend to Council the 
preferred appointment process.  

Members fully supported the collective ability of the Public Sector Audit 
Appointments (PSAA) to appoint the Auditors for the Authority.  The Executive 
Director explained the rules that governed this process were very strict and were 

Page 9



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 10 -

adhered too.  In response to a question, it was noted that Auditors were revolved in 
order to keep the process current and avoid complacency.  

Resolved 

That the Committee recommended to Full Council for consideration at its 
meeting scheduled for 16th February 2022 acceptance of the Public Sector 
Audit Appointments’ invitation to opt into the sector-led option for the 
appointment of external auditors to principal local government and police 
bodies for five financial years from 1 April 2023.

CHAIRPERSON

Meeting concluded at 1.05 pm

Page 10



P
age 11

A
genda Item

 6



Commercial in confidence

P
age 12



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

P
age 13



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

P
age 14



Commercial in confidence

P
age 15



Commercial in confidence

P
age 16



Commercial in confidence

•

•P
age 17



Commercial in confidence

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a rebuttable presumed risk that revenue may be 

misstated due to the improper recognition of revenue.

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 18



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 19



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 20



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 21



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 22



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 23

https://www.frc.org.uk/getattachment/0fa69c03-49ec-49ae-a8c9-cc7a2b65382a/ISA-(UK)-540_Revised-December-2018_final.pdf


Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

–

–

–

–

•

P
age 24



Commercial in confidence

P
age 25



Commercial in confidence

16

•

P
age 26



Commercial in confidence

P
age 27



Commercial in confidence

18

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 28



Commercial in confidence

.

•

•

•

Ethical Standard (revised 

2019)

P
age 29

https://www.frc.org.uk/getattachment/601c8b09-2c0a-4a6c-8080-30f63e50b4a2/Revised-Ethical-Standard-2019-With-Covers.pdf


Commercial in confidence

P
age 30



Commercial in confidence

21

Function Benefits for you

Data extraction Providing us with your financial 

information is made easier

File sharing An easy-to-use, ISO 27001 certified, 

purpose-built file sharing tool

Project 

management

Effective management and oversight of 

requests and responsibilities

Data analytics Enhanced assurance from access to 

complete data populations

P
age 31



Commercial in confidence

22

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 32



Commercial in confidence

j

✓

✓

j

✓

In progress

P
age 33



Commercial in confidence

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

j

P
age 34



✓

P
age 35



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 37



Commercial in confidence

P
age 38



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 39



Commercial in confidence

P
age 40

https://www.frc.org.uk/getattachment/97b5a417-d9bf-4649-b3c3-3ae49a350fe7/FRC-AQR-Major-Local-Audits_October-2021.pdf


Commercial in confidence

•

•P
age 41



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 42



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 43



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 44



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 45



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•P
age 46



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 47

https://www.frc.org.uk/getattachment/0fa69c03-49ec-49ae-a8c9-cc7a2b65382a/ISA-(UK)-540_Revised-December-2018_final.pdf


Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 48



Commercial in confidence

P
age 49



Commercial in confidence

14

IT system Audit area Planned level IT audit assessment

•

P
age 50



Commercial in confidence

15

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 51



Commercial in confidence

.

•

•

•

Ethical Standard (revised 

2019)

P
age 52

https://www.frc.org.uk/getattachment/601c8b09-2c0a-4a6c-8080-30f63e50b4a2/Revised-Ethical-Standard-2019-With-Covers.pdf


Commercial in confidence

P
age 53



Commercial in confidence

18

Function Benefits for you

Data extraction Providing us with your financial 

information is made easier

File sharing An easy-to-use, ISO 27001 certified, 

purpose-built file sharing tool

Project 

management

Effective management and oversight of 

requests and responsibilities

Data analytics Enhanced assurance from access to 

complete data populations

P
age 54



Commercial in confidence

19

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 55



Commercial in confidence

j

j

P
age 56



P
age 57



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 59

A
genda Item

 7



Commercial in confidence

P
age 60



Commercial in confidence

•

•

P
age 61

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/services/public-sector-services/


Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 62



Commercial in confidence

P
age 63



Commercial in confidence

P
age 64



Commercial in confidence

P
age 65



Commercial in confidence

P
age 66



Commercial in confidence

P
age 67

https://www.frc.org.uk/getattachment/97b5a417-d9bf-4649-b3c3-3ae49a350fe7/FRC-AQR-Major-Local-Audits_October-2021.pdf


Commercial in confidence

•

•

P
age 68



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

P
age 69

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/industries/public-sector/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/industries/public-sector/local-government/


Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 70

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/levelling-up-the-united-kingdom


Commercial in confidence

P
age 71



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 72

https://committees.parliament.uk/publications/6777/documents/72117/default/
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-authority-financial-sustainability-and-the-section-114-regime


Commercial in confidence

P
age 73

https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/consultations/emergency-proposals-for-update-of-202122-and-2022223-codes


Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

P
age 74



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 75

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/good-practice-in-annual-reports/


P
age 76



       

AUDIT RISK 
ASSURANCE

FINAL REPORT

RISK MANAGEMENT 
REVIEW 

JANUARY 2022

Page 77

Agenda Item 8



Audit, Risk and Assurance                                            Risk Management Review

TIAA/January 2022                                                    Page 1

CONTENTS

Section       Page

1 Introduction 2

2 Executive Summary and Findings 3

3 Risk Management Review Assessment          12

4 Risk Management Improvement Areas 12

5 Acknowledgement 13

6 Report Issue 13

7 Review Limitations 14

8 Appendix A 15

9 Appendix B 18

Page 78



Audit, Risk and Assurance                                                                              Review of Risk Management

TIAA/January 2022 Page 2

1. Introduction

1.1 Previous work into risk management included the following reports. 

1.2 In November 2018 the then Head of ARA undertook and produced a report titled 
“The Review of the Effectiveness of the Audit and Governance Committee” and in 
December 2019 reviewed in detail three key risks from the Strategic Risk Register, 
a report titled “Strategic Risk Register Controls Testing”.

1.3 The report “The Review of the Effectiveness of the Audit and Governance 
Committee” was undertaken as a result of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance 
and Accountants (CIPFA) issuing a report titled “Audit Committees in Local 
Authorities and Police, 2018 edition”. This guidance by CIPFA represents their view 
on best practice for audit committees in local authorities throughout the UK and 
replaced the previous report “Position Statement of Audit Committees in Local 
Government” issued in 2013.

1.4 Actions arising from this audit included:

“Updating the Terms of Reference of the Audit and Governance Committee in line 
with the CIPFA Audit Committees Practical Guidance for Local Authorities and 
Police 2018.”

1.5 The report “Strategic Risk Register Controls Testing” focussed on reviewing three 
strategic risks to provide assurance that based on this small sample strategic risks 
were being managed, reported and monitored to enable effective and appropriate 
scrutiny/challenge. The audit findings identified that a) InPhase (the Councils risk 
management software application) to be updated with the risk controls for each risk, 
b) that key risk controls are adequately discussed and challenged by the Corporate 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee and duly minuted, and c) that the Corporate 
Management Team have risk as a standing item on their agenda.  The only 
reference to the Audit and Governance Committee in the report is to state what the 
role of this committee is.

1.6 It should be noted that all the above work pre-dated the current Head of ARA. On 
taking up his position, the current Head of ARA determined that the existing 
arrangements for risk management at the Council were in need of a review and 
improvement.

1.7 Following the transfer of risk management from the Head of Audit, Risk and 
Assurance to the Head of Planning, Performance and Improvement, together they 
have begun a process to enhance risk management which includes reviewing its 
effectiveness across the Council.

1.8 As part of this it was agreed to review current risk management processes in order 
to inform any future developments. It was understood that the purpose of this was 
to capture the ‘as is’ arrangements and make recommendations for the future, 
understanding that work to improve the governance of risk had only recently begun. 
The Head of ARA commissioned TIAA to undertake the independent review of the 

Page 79



Audit, Risk and Assurance                                                                              Review of Risk Management

TIAA/January 2022 Page 3

Council’s risk management processes as they have a track record in assisting 
Council’s with risk management issues.

1.9 This is a timely opportunity to independently examine risk management, and to 
assist the Head of Planning, Performance and Improvement’s review. There are 
however, many positive aspects of risk management at the County which are 
referred to below that can be built on following this review.

1.10 As part of this review, TIAA will provide their assessment on where on the risk 
maturity scale the Council are currently. The review will also provide suggestions for 
management to consider and are made with the aim of enhancing risk management 
across the Council.

1.11 The review considered the following key matters:

i. The Council’s Constitution (or similar) that may refer to risk management (to 
include Financial Regulations) and CIPFA Guidance;

ii. The current risk management strategy, policy and procedures;

iii. Any and all risk registers that currently exist;

iv. Interviews with key and relevant officers and Members at the Council.

1.12 Advice and guidance are given without prejudice to the right of Internal Audit to 
review and make recommendations on relevant policies, procedures, controls and 
operations at a later date.

1.13 This report will be submitted to the Audit and Governance Committee scheduled for 
April 2022 in Part 1.

2. Executive Summary and Findings

2.1 There are many positive aspects to risk management at Gloucestershire County 
Council (GCC). These include:

i. The Council has a dedicated Senior Risk Management Adviser who coordinates 
risk management activity and ensures risk registers are reviewed and amended;

ii. The Council’s Risk Management Policy Statement and Strategy were being 
reviewed and refreshed whilst this review was being undertaken. TIAA’s views on 
this can be considered for incorporation into the updated Strategy;

iii. Training is provided to officers and Members on risk management;

iv. A corporate Risk Management Group has been established. This meets on a 
regular basis to discuss issues and disseminate information pertaining to risk 
management;

Page 80



Audit, Risk and Assurance                                                                              Review of Risk Management

TIAA/January 2022 Page 4

v. GCC uses InPhase for its risk management. This means risk management 
information is held centrally, on a recognised performance software;

vi. It is generally felt that GCC has a positive risk management culture.

2.2 The Council’s Senior Risk Management Advisor transferred in November 2020 from 
Audit Risk Assurance (ARA) to the Planning, Performance and Improvement section.

2.3 This was a positive step by the Council as it separates the risk management function 
from Internal Audit, who provide independent assurance on its effectiveness. This 
also allows for better reporting of risk within and throughout the reporting of 
performance.

2.4 With regard to risk management, the Council’s Audit and Governance Committee 
(the Committee) in TIAA’s opinion does not completely fulfil its role as defined 
either by the Council’s Constitution or CIPFA in their guidance “Audit Committees – 
Practical Guidance for Local Authorities and Police Authorities – 2018”. Although 
the Audit report in November 2018 “The Review of the Effectiveness of the Audit 
and Governance Committee” did make an action as follows: “Update Terms of 
Reference in line with the CIPFA Audit Committees Practical Guidance for Local 
Authorities and Police 2018.”

2.5 Risk registers, which set out the Council’s risks and the actions to mitigate them are 
reported to the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee (COSC). However, the 
work of Internal Audit, which reports on how those mitigating actions work in practice, 
are reported to the Audit and Governance Committee. Therefore, there is no single 
committee with a holistic view of the Council’s entire risk management 
arrangements, or which can challenge the veracity of its risk registers. The 
suggestion here is not to diminish the role of the COSC but to enable the Audit and 
Governance Committee to have a more holistic view of risk and risk management by 
receiving regular access to the County’s strategic risk register. The COSC should 
continue to receive risk data, as required, to enable COSC to consider performance 
against objectives as part of their terms of reference.

2.6 Without comprehensive risk data going to the Audit and Governance Committee, this 
will limit the challenge that the Committee can provide when reviewing and approving 
the Council’s Annual Governance Statement. 

2.7 During this review the Council’s key documents (that support the risk management 
framework) were examined and an interview with the Section 151 Officer was 
undertaken. 

2.8 A number of the Council’s key documents were reviewed and an analysis of some of 
these are shown at Appendix A.

2.9 The extracts from the CIPFA Guidance, as contained in Appendix A, are included 
as examples of what an Audit Committee should include as an integral part of its 
Terms of Reference. It is therefore suggested that an audit (and governance) 
committee should where possible adopt the principles of the CIPFA Guidance. It is 
however, acknowledged that the Council does look to adopt the good practice risk 
management principles, in line with the Institute of Risk Management Professional 

Page 81



Audit, Risk and Assurance                                                                              Review of Risk Management

TIAA/January 2022 Page 5

Standards 2015 and the International Risk Management Standard (ISO 31000 - 
2018).

2.10 There is additional guidance within the CIPFA Guidance that the Council should 
take into consideration:

“Assurance over risk management will be a key element underpinning the Annual 
Governance Statement. The audit committee also needs a good understanding of 
the level of assurance risk management provides when it reviews the risk-based 
internal audit plan or reviews other assurances on areas of risk.”

2.11 The Council’s strategic risk register (which contains the information shown in 
Appendix B) is reported to COSC but not to the Audit and Governance Committee. 
There is some reporting of risks and mitigating actions to COSC and to the Audit 
and Governance Committee. However, it is COSC who are updated quarterly on 
the risks identified in the Council’s strategic risk register by discussions with 
management.

2.12 The Audit and Governance Committee are however, updated on risks and controls 
by the work of Internal Audit. The work of Internal Audit examines actual controls, 
tests and then appraises these. This work is independent, analytical and evidence 
based.

2.13 It is recognised that COSC discusses the operation of risks and controls with 
management but they do not receive independent verification of this from Internal 
Audit as the Audit and Governance Committee does.

2.14 The ability of COSC to effectively scrutinise the Council’s risk management 
arrangements, without having information as to how well mitigating actions (as 
presented in risk registers) operate in practice, therefore needs to be considered.

2.15 The Chairman of the Audit and Governance Committee stated that he did receive 
an annual report on risk management activity. He also stated that as the Audit and 
Governance Committee only received an annual report they were unable to provide 
the assurances as required to fulfil all of the Terms of Reference relating to the 
Audit and Governance Committee, such as the approval of the Annual Governance 
Statement. 

2.16 It should be noted that as well as the annual report on risk management activity, 
the Audit and Governance Committee also receive Internal Audit reports, the 
Annual Report of the Head of ARA, reports from the External Auditor and 
occasionally from other assurance providers. All of these, to a greater or lesser 
extent contain information pertaining to the Council’s risk environment.

2.17 Therefore, the Audit and Governance Committee does undertake a great deal of 
the work that it should, in accordance with the Council’s Constitution and the 
CIPFA Guidance. 

Page 82



Audit, Risk and Assurance                                                                              Review of Risk Management

TIAA/January 2022 Page 6

2.18 However, the strategic risk register is a key component of the risk management 
framework and at present this is not received by the Committee. The Committee 
does not therefore, have a complete picture of the Council’s risk environment.

2.19 The risk management framework includes risk registers. Therefore, to comply with 
CIPFA Guidance the Committee should have sight of the Council’s strategic risk 
register. This would enable a single committee to have a complete picture of the 
Council’s risk management environment, to assess and offer challenge as to how 
risks are managed, and the planned work of Internal Audit.

2.20 The Committee should examine Internal Audit’s plan and consider whether it 
addresses the risks that the Council faces. In order to do this, the Committee 
should have sight of the Council’s strategic risk register to understand where 
management perceive these risks to lie. The Committee can then challenge 
Internal Audit’s plan more effectively.

2.21 The Council should reflect on what risk data is presented to the Scrutiny Committee 
and to the Audit and Governance Committee. In any event the current risk data that 
the Audit and Governance Committee receives is not sufficient to enable them to 
discharge all of their current defined duties.

2.22 The point stated above is also pertinent to the Annual Governance Statement 
(AGS). As part of this review, the AGS for 2019/20 was examined and this states:

“What is a Governance Assurance Framework?

Assurance provides confidence, based on sufficient evidence, that internal controls 
are in place and are operating effectively and that objectives are being achieved. 
An Assurance Framework is a structure within which Members and Senior 
Management identify the principal risks to the Council meeting its key objectives, 
and through which they map out both the key controls to manage them and how 
they have gained sufficient assurance about the effectiveness of those controls. 
The assurance framework underpins the statements made within the Annual 
Governance Statement (AGS).”

2.23 The AGS is a comprehensive document covering governance and risk issues. With 
regard to the points above, the ability of the Committee to discharge its duty in its 
review of the AGS without detailed knowledge throughout the year on all risk 
related matters is diminished.

2.24 In addition, the AGS states at page 9 that “the Council’s Risk Maturity Assessment 
which is Level 4 out of 5: Risk Managed”. This is perhaps a generous assessment 
and one that the evidence in this review does not support.

2.25 The Risk Management Policy Statement and Strategy (2018 – 2021) was reviewed. 
(It is noted that a revised draft of the Risk Management Policy Statement and 
Strategy is in the process of being approved and this might affect some of the 
commentary below). This is a detailed document that clearly explains how risk 
management should be undertaken. Under “Our Strategic Risk Management 
Objectives” section it states:

Page 83



Audit, Risk and Assurance                                                                              Review of Risk Management

TIAA/January 2022 Page 7

“The risk management objectives are all sound principles of why you need risk 
management”.

2.13 Particular objectives to draw out by way of example that might not currently be 
enacted include:

“Setting the ‘tone from the top’ on the level of risk we are prepared to accept on our 
different service delivery activities and priorities. Understanding our ‘risk appetite’ 
and acknowledging that how we ‘think about risk’ will be different depending on the 
context of corporate impact and sensitivity.”

2.26 During this review, no evidence was found of an adequate and appropriate risk 
appetite and whether risk is considered within the context of corporate impact and 
sensitivity.

2.27 Risk appetite is also explicitly explained and in particular states: 

“A framework has been developed and implemented to enable risk judgements to 
be more explicit, transparent and consistent. By enhancing our approach to 
determining risk appetite we are able to raise the Council’s capability to deliver on 
challenging targets to raise standards, improve service quality, system reform and 
provide more value for money.

This framework is considered by all levels of the business, from strategic decision 
making, to operational delivery.”

2.28 The responses to the questionnaire set to senior management within each 
Directorate would indicate that the Council needs to reflect further on its risk 
appetite.

2.29 The above comments are not a definitive list but a snap shot of where the Risk 
Management Policy Statement and Strategy is at the current time. Further, parts of 
the Policy Statement and Strategy may be seen more as aspirational rather than 
what is and should be happening at the Council. 

2.30 The Risk Management Policy Statement and Strategy is not being complied with in 
a number of parts which gives a false impression of the Council’s risk maturity.

2.31 The Strategic Risk Register is held within InPhase, a recognised performance 
management software application that also caters for risks and was reviewed.

2.32 The following issues were identified that, if remedied, would greatly assist in the 
identification, monitoring and management of the Council’s key risks and their 
mitigations.

2.33 Firstly, the risk register does not identify any objectives. It is not clear therefore 
which objective might be affected by the “risks” identified in the register.

2.34 It is not clear whether the risks described in the register are indeed risks. They 
appear to be statements for example: 

Page 84



Audit, Risk and Assurance                                                                              Review of Risk Management

TIAA/January 2022 Page 8

“Risk - SR2.8

The cumulative impact of service pressures, particularly the financial impact of 
COVID19, increased demand in Children and Adults social care and Educational 
High Needs, potential grant reductions and the under delivery of planned savings 
will result in major overspend positions in current financial year.”

2.35 Risk registers should initially describe the objective, followed by the Risk Area (a 
paragraph). The heading for the above risk (SR2.8) is Strategic Risk 2: Financial 
(New Qtr 3 19/20). There will then be a number of strategic risks that are relevant 
to the Risk Area. (A risk can only be defined in relation to an objective as risks are 
uncertainties).

2.36 Residual risk shows the direction of travel but does not indicate how the inherent 
risk has been reduced to the new residual risk score.  

2.37 Mitigations are a statement of issues at a point in time and do not appear to be 
controls. Controls should be split between preventative controls which would be 
active prior to a risk occurring and act mainly on the likelihood, and recovery 
controls that would only be active should a risk occur and these would only act on 
the impact or consequence once the risk has occurred.

2.38 A better structured risk register that flowed from the Council’s objectives would 
provide a more informative document.

2.39 The Fraud Risk Register was reviewed which identifies the potential fraud risks 
facing the Council. While parts of the register are informative there are elements 
that should be reviewed such as Risk F. This deals with the theft or 
misappropriation of cash and lists a number of policies as controls. Policies and 
procedures can be mentioned but as a control, can be difficult to quantify as to their 
effectiveness, unless the procedures are specific such as a “separation of duties” 
(mentioned as a control) when proving and posting payments.

2.40 The current controls listed in the Fraud Risk Register may not be actual controls. 
Instead, a control, such as Fidelity Guarantee Insurance, should be listed as this 
will act as a reduction on the Impact should the risk occur, as this insurance will 
cover (to some extent) employee fraud or theft.  

2.41 The Council does have a Risk Management Group who meet on a regular basis to 
review risks across the whole Council and is represented by senior members from 
all directorates.  This Group has been in place for many years, and was recently 
completely reviewed including its terms of reference and membership, to ensure 
appropriate membership and active participation on recommending actions to the 
CLT. 

2.42 In addition, it is noted that increased reporting to Members has taken place in the 
last year through improved presentations to COSC. The Council have also moved 
to link performance and risk reporting, which has already seen increased 

Page 85



Audit, Risk and Assurance                                                                              Review of Risk Management

TIAA/January 2022 Page 9

participation activity from Directors on the strategic risk register and a raised profile 
for risk reporting and management.

2.43 As part of the risk management review, a Risk Maturity Questionnaire was devised 
and issued to senior managers within each Directorate, all of whom being members 
of the Risk Management Group. A total of six questionnaires were issued covering 
the following areas:

i. Risk Culture;
ii. Risk Identification;
iii. Risk Assessment;
iv. Risk Appetite;
v. Risk Response;
vi. Risk Reporting;
vii. Integration with Strategic/Service Plans; and
viii. Assessment of Risk Management Effectiveness

2.44 A summary of the responses to the questionnaire from the six Directorates follows:

2.45 Risk Culture (Questions 1-7) – Generally, there is consensus that the Council has 
an effective approach to Risk Culture which flows from the Members and Corporate 
Leadership Team. The impression is that the Directors fully support risk 
management and are keen to promote this throughout their directorates. It was 
noted however, in the commentary, that risks identified in the strategic risk register 
remain in situ for long periods of time. This could bring into question whether the 
risks identified are indeed risks or maybe something else such as a cause or 
consequence. 

2.46 The risks in the strategic risk register should be further challenged to confirm they 
are “risks” that the Council needs to manage.

2.47 Risk Identification (Questions 8-14) – the feedback on risk identification is mixed 
across the Directorates. This would indicate that further work should be undertaken 
to strengthen this important aspect of the risk management process. In particular, 
there is considerable consensus that for question14 - “All Council staff have been 
afforded the opportunity to provide input into the risk identification process” – that 
this may not be the case.

2.48 Further investigation should be undertaken to seek the views of staff regarding risk 
identification. This could be done by asking staff to initially complete a simple 
survey regarding risk identification.

2.49 Risk Assessment (Questions 15 – 21) – For likelihood and consequence there is 
general consensus that this is done well.

2.50 The Council has not specifically addressed the following two areas:

i. question 19 - “The Council’s processes encourage the Corporate Leadership 
Team (CLT) to consider any low likelihood risks but which might have a 
catastrophic impact (known as “black swan” events)” and,

Page 86



Audit, Risk and Assurance                                                                              Review of Risk Management

TIAA/January 2022 Page 10

ii. question 20 - “The Council also considers other dimensions, in addition, to 
likelihood and impact such as “speed of a risk occurring”, or its persistence 
once occurred etc. when assessing risks/events.”

2.51 The Risk Management Group (RMG) should collectively consider these two 
important aspects of risk management and include in any future policy. 

2.74 Risk Appetite (Questions 22-25) - generally there was consensus that more work is 
needed here to understand and to identify what the Council’s risk appetite is and 
whether this should apply to each risk. There is commentary in the Risk 
Management Policy on Risk Appetite but this has not been fully developed.

2.52 The RMG should progress Risk Appetite for the Council and to oversee the 
implementation of this important aspect of risk management.

2.53 Risk Response (Questions 26 – 33) – there was a mixed outcome to the following 
questions:

i. questions 27 - “The Council has evaluated whether the existing response is 
sufficient to manage the risks within the Council’s risk appetite”; 

ii. question 28 – “The Council has evaluated the potential cost of the risk response 
relative to the benefit provided in either reducing the impact or likelihood of the 
risk event”; and

iii. question 30 – “The Council’s risk management procedures help identify 
potential overlaps or duplications in risk response across the Council 
Departments.” 

2.54 There was generally consensus that this may not be done to a satisfactory degree. 
The RMG should progress this and include in any future policy.

2.55 For the following questions there was a mixed response with 50% of directorates 
unsure or did not know:

i. questions 31 – “The Council conducts “desk top” exercises to test whether 
responses to its most significant risks are working as intended; 

ii. question 32 – “The Council has objectively assessed the effectiveness of risk 
response plans for its most significant risks?; and 

iii. question 33 – “The Council has objectively assessed the effectiveness of risk 
response plans for other key risks outside of the most significant risks.” 

2.56 The RMG to reflect upon the answers to the above questions and to progress.

2.57 There was a mixed outcome to risk reporting Questions 34 – 36. In particular, 
question 36 – “The Corporate Leadership Team (CLT) has identified thresholds or 
trigger points whereby risk monitoring indicates that an emerging risk requires 

Page 87



Audit, Risk and Assurance                                                                              Review of Risk Management

TIAA/January 2022 Page 11

greater management or Member attention.” Risks are escalated but not 
systematically within the Council.  

2.58 The RMG should progress this and include in any future policy

2.59 Integration with Strategic and Service Plans (Questions 37 – 43) – there was 
general consensus regarding compliance with this area. However, question 42 – 
“The Council’s risk management processes encourage consideration of 
opportunities where the Council can take informed risks to improve service delivery 
or generate improved returns (for example a commercialisation investment 
programme).” It was stated that this happens as part of the annual MTFS process, 
but there is not a formal methodology.

2.60 This is an area that should be further developed. 

2.61 Assessment of Risk Management Effectiveness (Questions 44 – 49) – there was 
general consensus regarding compliance with this area. Some “no’s” and “don’t 
knows” however, particularly for question 47 – “The Council obtains an independent 
and objective assessment of its risk management processes on a regular basis.”

2.62 A regular, say annual, independent review should be undertaken on the Council’s 
risk management processes.

2.63 There was also discussion that the Council had limited risk management support – 
question 46 – “The Council has allocated adequate resources to support the risk 
management function.”  

2.64 Risk Management has been implemented into the Planning, Performance and 
Improvement Directorate to increase corporate capacity and resilience. However, 
the Risk Management team at the Council is just one person who is part time. 

2.65 The resilience of the risk management function should be tested to include the role 
of the Risk Champions to assess whether the current arrangements are adequate 
to support the ongoing development of risk management given the size and 
complexity of the Council.

Page 88



Audit, Risk and Assurance                                                                              Review of Risk Management

TIAA/January 2022 Page 12

3. Risk Management Review Assessment

Level 1
Developing
(Risk Naïve)

Level 2
Progressing
(Risk Aware)

Level 3
Operational

(Risk Defined)

Level 4
Embedded & 

Engaged
(Risk Managed)

Level 5
Dynamic & 

Empowering
(Risk Enabled)

R
is

k 
M

at
ur

ity
 L

ev
el

No formal 
approach to risk 
management. 

Consulting and 
planning to 

implement risk 
management.

Early Stages of 
implementation.

Established risk 
management with 
planned extension 

/development.

Fully established 
and effective risk 

culture at all levels.

3.1 On the basis of the documentation examined, responses to the questionnaire, 
evaluation and sample testing of the risk management system and processes in 
place, it is TIAA’s view that the Council are at level 3 on the risk maturity scale 
shown above. Further work and training is needed to be compliant with its Risk 
Management Policy Statement and Strategy. 

3.2 We have identified areas where improvements can be considered to enhance the 
existing risk management processes and to help re-focus and support the Council 
on its risk management journey.

4. Risk Management Improvement Areas

4.1 The Council should consider the role of the Audit and Governance Committee and 
how it satisfactorily discharges its duties with regard to the AGS, the Internal Audit 
plan and the Risk Management Policy Statement and Strategy without sight of the 
Councils Strategic Risk Register.

4.2 The Council should review its risks in the corporate risk register and be satisfied 
that these are indeed risks and not something else.

4.3 Members and the CLT should set the tone from the top and determine the level of 
risk the Council are prepared to accept on the different service delivery activities 
and priorities.

4.4 The risk register should be developed to provide more meaningful data such as 
how the inherent risks impact the delivery of the Council’s objectives, how inherent 
risks have been reduced to the residual risks and to clearly identify the preventative 
and recovery controls.

4.5 The Council should review its Terms of Reference for the Corporate Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee and the Audit and Governance Committee to enable adequate 
and appropriate risk management data to be presented to the Audit and 
Governance Committee to enable it to carry out its duties as currently described in 
their Terms of Reference, CIPFA Guidance, the Institute of Risk Management 
Professional Standards 2015 and the International Risk Management Standard 
(ISO 31000 - 2018).

Page 89



Audit, Risk and Assurance                                                                              Review of Risk Management

TIAA/January 2022 Page 13

4.3 The Council should look to evidence all aspects of the Risk Management Policy 
Statement and Strategy to confirm that the statements made within it are indeed 
being applied and undertaken in practice. (It is noted the Council is in the process 
of updating its Risk Management Policy Statement and Strategy, which has not 
been reviewed at this time.)

4.4 The Council should conduct a survey of managers and then all staff to understand 
their awareness and understanding of risk management and the part they play in 
assessing risk and in achieving objectives in the most efficient and effective way.

4.5 The Council should establish ongoing training for managers and staff to better 
understand risk and its management.

4.6 The Council should develop their Risk Champions to understand the benefits of risk 
management, the systems involved that manage risks (risk register) and have time 
allocated to support others in their departments and directorates.

4.7 The Council should stress test its resilience to supporting risk management across 
the whole council. For example by considering whether Risk Champions have 
reserved time for risk management. Also, given the size, diversity and complexity of 
the Council whether one (part time) person is an adequate level of resource for 
such an important function. 

4.8 The Council should support the Risk Management Group to further develop and 
enhance risk management at the Council on its risk maturity journey by for instance 
enabling the Group members specific time for progressing risk management within 
their own directorates. 

5. Acknowledgement

5.1 TIAA would like to thank all of the staff involved for their help and co-operation 
during this risk management review.

6. Report Issue

6.1 This report will be issued to:

i. Steve Mawson – Executive Director of Corporate Resources;
ii. Rob Ayliffe – Director of Policy, Performance and Governance;
iii. Darren Skinner – Head of Planning, Performance and Improvement;
iv. Sally Coates – Senior Risk Management Advisor; and
v. Piyush Fatania - Head of Audit, Risk, Assurance and Insurance Services

Page 90



Audit, Risk and Assurance                                                                              Review of Risk Management

TIAA/January 2022 Page 14

7. Review Limitations

7.1 The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during 
the course of the review from sample testing undertaken, examination of documents 
and discussion with staff.

7.2 The work of Internal Audit should not be relied upon to identify all strengths and 
weaknesses that may exist or all the improvements that might be made. It may not 
identify all circumstances of fraud or irregularity should there be any. However audit 
procedures have been designed to give a reasonable probability of discovery of any 
material irregularities.

Page 91



Audit, Risk and Assurance                                                                              Review of Risk Management

TIAA/January 2022 Page 15

8. Appendix A

4.6 A review of the Council’s Constitution identified within part 3 – Responsibility for 
Functions - Section 3.10 details the duties of the Audit and Governance Committee:

i. Statement of Purpose includes:

“The purpose of the committee is to provide independent assurance to Council 
of the adequacy of the risk management framework and the internal control 
environment”.

ii. Governance, Risk and Control includes:

“To review and approve the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) and consider 
whether it properly reflects the risk environment and supporting assurances, 
taking into account Internal Audit’s opinion on the overall adequacy and 
effectiveness of the Council’s framework of governance, risk management and 
control.

iii. To monitor the effective development and operation of risk management in the 
Council and to monitor progress in addressing risk-related issues reported to the 
committee.

iv. To review the assessment of fraud risks and potential harm to the Council from 
fraud and corruption”.

4.7 Within part 3 – Responsibility for Functions - Section 3.11, details the roles of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee (COSC), the terms of Reference includes:

i. Carry out the scrutiny functions of the County Council delivering the roles set 
out in Article 8 of the Constitution by providing a corporate overview of 
performance, the budget, risk management and service improvement.

4.8 The description of the “Roles of the Scrutiny Committee” as to their actual function 
in the risk management process is not very clear. There is, as shown above, more 
detail for the risk management arrangements identified within the duties of the 
Audit and Governance Committee. In a meeting with the Chairman of the Audit and 
Governance Committee, he expressed his view that risk is mainly a feature of the 
Scrutiny Committee. 

4.9 The Council’s Risk Management Policy Statement and Strategy (2018 – 2021) 
does further explain the Accountabilities, Roles and Responsibilities of the various 
Council hierarchy and these provide the following detail on risk management:

4.10 Under Cabinet, the Risk Management Policy Statement and Strategy states: 

i. “Endorse the Risk Management Policy Statement and Strategy;

ii. Endorse the content of the Strategic Risk Register and proposed risk 
mitigation plans, and monitor implementation;

Page 92



Audit, Risk and Assurance                                                                              Review of Risk Management

TIAA/January 2022 Page 16

iii. Be aware of the risk management implications of decisions;

iv. Monitor key performance results including the production of an annual report 
on strategic risk management activity; and

v. Nominate a Lead Member Risk Management Champion to be responsible for 
the championing, scrutiny and oversight of the risk management activities”. 
This is the Deputy Leader who is also the Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Change.

4.11 Under the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee, the Risk Management 
Policy Statement and Strategy states:

i. “Ensure that risks and opportunities within their portfolio are identified and 
effectively managed through discussions with Directors and Service Heads;

ii. Facilitate a risk management culture across the council;

iii. Contribute to the Cabinet review of risk and being proactive in raising risk from 
the wider Gloucestershire area and community; and

iv. Monitor and challenge key risk controls and actions.”

4.12 Under Audit and Governance Committee, the Risk Management and Policy 
Statement and Strategy states:

i. Provide independent assurance to the Council of the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the risk management arrangements and associated control 
environment;

ii. Receive an annual report on risk management activity; and to be added in the 
2022 revised document

iii. Receive a report on the Annual Governance Statement (AGS), and 
subsequent progress reports.

4.13 The CIPFA publication “Audit Committees Practical Guidance for Local Authorities 
and Police (2018 edition)” (the Guidance) represents best practice for audit 
committees in local authorities throughout the UK. As it is CIPFA Guidance which 
states that it is “Best Practice for local authorities”, the Council should ideally 
follow this.

4.14 The Guidance states that the core functions of an audit committee are to:

i. Be satisfied that the authority’s assurance statements, including the annual 
governance statement, properly reflect the risk environment and any actions 
required to improve it, and demonstrate how governance supports the 
achievement of the authority’s objectives.

Page 93



Audit, Risk and Assurance                                                                              Review of Risk Management

TIAA/January 2022 Page 17

ii. Consider the effectiveness of the authority’s risk management arrangements 
and the control environment, reviewing the risk profile of the organisation and 
assurances that action is being taken on risk-related issues, including 
partnerships and collaborations with other organisations.”

4.15 The CIPFA statement goes on to state: 

“In determining the audit committee’s responsibilities towards risk management, 
authorities should have regard to the responsibilities of other committees such as 
scrutiny committees and the specific responsibilities of those charged with 
governance in relation to risk management.”

4.16 The above does not absolve an audit committee from the responsibilities towards 
risk management, as extensively detailed in the CIPFA Guidance. In undertaking 
those responsibilities, the audit committee can take cognisance of the work of other 
committees regarding risk management. For instance, a scrutiny committee may 
review and comment upon the risks pertaining to a particular Council project. The 
audit committee can note these in any deliberations it makes on those risks.

Page 94



Audit, Risk and Assurance                                                                              Review of Risk Management

TIAA/January 2022 Page 18

5. Appendix B (Risk Management Framework)

5.1 The main elements of a risk management framework are:

i. Risk identification and assessment;
ii. Risk mitigation;
iii. Risk monitoring and reporting; and
iv. Risk governance.

5.2 Risk identification and assessment involves identifying risks that could prevent the 
Council from achieving its objectives. This includes IT, operational, regulatory, 
legal, political and strategic risks. Risk assessment involves quantifying the 
probability of a risk arising and the potential impact if it does. The results of risk 
identification and assessment are recorded in risk registers.

5.3 Risk mitigation involves identifying actions which can minimise the probability of a 
risk materialising or the impact if it does. This can include:

i. Tolerate the risk – some risks cannot be reduced and so the Council accepts 
these as a “fact of life”;

ii. Treat the risk – take mitigating actions that will reduce the probability or impact 
of a risk;

iii. Transfer the risk – insurance & contracting out are the most common transfer 
mechanisms; or

iv. Terminate the risk – some risks can never be accepted and so the activity that 
causes it is halted. This, however, is not always an option for the Council as it 
has statutory duties to provide certain services.

5.4 Risk monitoring and reporting – by their nature, risks change over time. New risks 
can emerge, existing ones can change and the efficacy of mitigating controls needs 
to be monitored on a continuous basis to ensure they are fit for purpose.

5.5 The results of risk monitoring work need to be reported to a relevant body within the 
organisation (with regard to the Council, a Member Committee). This is to ensure 
there is effective oversight and challenge of the Council’s risk management 
arrangements.

5.6 Risk governance refers to codifying the risk management arrangements (for 
example in a Risk Management Strategy), establish the processes for risk 
management and defining the roles of officers and Members in this.

5.7 With regard to the risk management framework and how this relates to the 
responsibilities, it appears at the Council that no single committee is wholly 
responsible for the actions stated above.

Page 95



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Audit and Governance Committee

Date: 8th April 2022 Agenda No:

Title of Report: Draft Internal Audit Plan 2022/23

Purpose of Report: To provide the Committee with a summary of the draft 2022/23 
Risk Based Internal Audit Plan as required by the Accounts and 
Audit Regulations 2015 and the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards (PSIAS) 2017.

Recommendations: It is recommended that the Committee:

i. Notes that the Internal Audit Plan for 2022/23 reflects the 
risk profile of the Council; and

ii. Agree the 2022/23 Internal Audit Plan. 

Officer(s) Contact: Piyush Fatania – Head of Audit Risk Assurance (ARA) and 
Insurance Services
Tel: 01452 328883
piyush.fatania@gloucestershire.gov.uk

Alistair Rush - Interim Director of Finance
Tel: 01452 324103
alistair.rush@gloucestershire.gov.uk 

Key Risks Failure to deliver an effective Risk Based Internal Audit Plan 
(Risk and Control Assurance Programme) will impact on the 
statutory requirement to provide the Council with an annual 
independent audit opinion on the effectiveness of the Council’s 
control environment comprising risk management, control and 
governance.

Page 97

Agenda Item 9

mailto:piyush.fatania@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:alistair.rush@gloucestershire.gov.uk


2

Background and Key Points

i. All Councils must make proper provision for Internal Audit in line with the 
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 (the Regulations). The Regulations 
provide that a relevant Council ‘must undertake an effective Internal Audit to 
evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control and governance 
processes, taking into account public sector internal auditing standards or 
guidance’. Completion of annual Internal Audit activity based on the risk 
profile of the Council also supports the Section 151 Officer’s duty to ensure 
the proper administration of the Council’s financial affairs.

ii. The guidance accompanying the Regulations recognises the PSIAS 2017 (the 
Standards) as representing ‘proper Internal Audit practices’. The Standards 
define the way in which the Internal Audit service should be established and 
undertake its operations. These Standards require the Head of ARA to 
produce an Annual Risk Based Internal Audit Plan to determine the priorities 
of Internal Audit activity. 

iii. The proposed activity should be consistent with the Council’s priorities and 
objectives. It should take into account the risk management framework, risk 
appetite levels set by management and Internal Audit’s own judgement of 
risks.

iv. To ensure Internal Audit resources continue to be focussed accordingly, it is 
essential that we understand the Council’s needs. This requires building 
relationships with key stakeholders, including other assurance and challenge 
providers, to gain crucial insight and ongoing understanding of the strategic 
and operational change agendas within the Council. 

v. This insight is not only identified at the initial development stages of the Risk 
Based Internal Audit Plan. Dialogue continues throughout the financial year(s) 
and increases the ability for the Internal Audit service to adapt more closely to 
meet the assurance needs of the Council, particularly during periods of 
significant change. Our Plan is therefore dynamic and flexible to meet these 
needs. 

vi. To ensure that an effective Plan is developed and alongside Internal Audit’s 
own assessment of risk, a consultation process took place with Directors, 
Heads of Service and Managers to establish priorities and assurance 
requirements. Audit and Governance Committee and wider Member audit 
requests were also considered as part of the consultation approach. The 
proposed activity from all sources was collated and matched against Internal 
Audit’s resource availability and prioritised accordingly.  

vii. For the 2022/23 Internal Audit Plan, ARA have enhanced our methodology to 
analyse and document risks. This will enable us to align our work to the 
Council’s risks more effectively. 

Page 98



3

viii.In previous years, the Internal Audit Plan was based largely on discussions 
with management about the areas to audit. However, distinguishing between 
different risks, particularly from different services and departments, was based 
more on subjective opinions rather than qualified judgement. Assessing how 
best to use ARA resources was challenging as it was not easy to measure the 
relative importance of risks and issues identified by management. The new 
process is analytically driven and improves our ability to measure and 
compare risks more accurately. This enables our work to be better aligned to 
the risks of the Council.

ix. The Plan is stated in terms of estimated days input to the Council of 1,825 
audit days, which is comparable to prior year. By continuing to apply risk 
based Internal Audit planning principles, this level of input is considered 
acceptable to provide the Internal Audit assurance requirements of the 
Council. 

x. The Head of ARA will continue to reassess Internal Audit resource 
requirements against the Council’s priorities and risks. As a result of this 
review process, the Plan will be amended throughout the year as required. 

xi. It is noted that outcomes from the 2021/22 Ofsted inspection and the review 
by Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary and Fire & Rescue Services 
(HMICFRS) have the potential to impact the areas audited by ARA within 
2022/23. ARA will continue to engage with both the Children’s Services 
Department and the Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service (GFRS) 
management teams to ensure that the Internal Audit Plan remains flexible to 
meet the assurance needs of the Council.  

xii. Any key changes to the Plan will be reported to the Audit and Governance 
Committee. 

Page 99



This page is intentionally left blank



AUDIT, RISK AND ASSURANCE – DRAFT INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2022/23

Ref Indicative 
Quarter Entity Audit Risk

Score Proposed Scope Risk 
Register Ref

Quarter 1 2022/23
1 1 Council Wide Carry Forwards High The allocation provides for the completion of various 

2021/22 audits which require finalising. This 
captures 22 individual ARA activities being 
delivered across the year end period. 

Various

2 1 Adults Amenity Funds High To assess the Amenity Funds management 
arrangements in place, including authorised 
signatories and closure of accounts.

3 1 Adults Investment in 
Order of St. 
Johns (OSJ) 
Homes

High To examine the governance arrangements for £6m 
of improvements expenditure, including 
consideration of roles and responsibilities. 

SR 7.1
SR 6.1
SR 5.3

4 1 Adults Small value 
contracts within 
Prevention, 
Wellbeing and 
Communities 
(PWC)

Consultancy Request from the Assistant Director of Public Health 
to review PWC contracts below the value of £15,000 
and confirm they have been let in line with due 
process. 

5 1 Adults Use of 
LiquidLogic

Medium To consider whether there are any issues 
preventing the potential benefits of the new system 
being realised; and to ensure the system being 
used as intended.

SR 7.1

6 1 Children’s Information 
Requests into 
Children’s 
Services

High To undertake a review of the process to respond to 
information requests, which are increasing in 
number and complexity.

SR 7.5

7 1 Children’s Free Places for 
eligible two-year-
olds

Medium To undertake a review of the data processes for 
reporting the percentage take-up of free places for 
eligible two-year-olds, both internally and to the 
Department for Education.

SR 7.4
SR 7.7

P
age 101



AUDIT, RISK AND ASSURANCE – DRAFT INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2022/23

Ref Indicative 
Quarter Entity Audit Risk

Score Proposed Scope Risk 
Register Ref

8 1 Children’s Young Carers’ 
Assessments

Medium To undertake a review of the Young Carers’ 
Assessments that are commissioned through 
Gloucestershire Young Carers to compliment the 
audit undertaken within the Adults Directorate in 
2021/22.

SR 7.2
SR 7.4

9 1 Corporate 
Resources

Estate Hazard 
Management 
Compliance

High To review and assess the process for completing 
the annual statement of Estate Hazard 
Management Compliance.

10 1 Economy, 
Environment, and 
Infrastructure

Local Flood Risk 
Management 
Strategy 
(LFRMS)

High To review the effectiveness of the LFRMS, including 
compliance with the relevant statutory duty. 

SR 10.1

11 1 Economy, 
Environment, and 
Infrastructure

Energy from 
Waste

Medium To review the effectiveness of the contract 
management arrangements and to assess whether 
the payments made to the contractor are in line with 
the contract. 

SR 12.1

Quarter 2 2022/23

12 2 Adults Care Homes, 
Nursing Homes 
or Home Care

High To select one theme for review from: Care Homes, 
Nursing Homes or Home Care. The review will 
assess whether respective payments are correct 
and that a contract exists with the provider(s).

SR 5.3
SR 7.1
SR 2.8

13 2 Adults Financial 
Assessments

High To review the financial assessment process, 
focusing on deprivation of assets where an 
individual intentionally reduces their assets to avoid 
asset inclusion within an assessment.

14 2 Adults Liberty Protection 
Safeguards 
(LPS)

High Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards (DoLS) is due to 
be replaced with LPS. This review will consider 
preparation for the implementation of LPS.

SR 7.1
SR 7.8
SR 8.1

15 2 Children’s Foster Carer 
Bandings and 
Payments

Medium The audit will review the Foster Carer Bandings and 
Payments systems in place to provide assurance 
that the control environment is robust and operating 
effectively. 

SR 7.2
SR 7.5

P
age 102



AUDIT, RISK AND ASSURANCE – DRAFT INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2022/23

Ref Indicative 
Quarter Entity Audit Risk

Score Proposed Scope Risk 
Register Ref

16 2 Children’s Housing funded 
by Section 17

Medium The review will focus on the work of the Housing 
Team around the level of accommodation paid for 
by the Council for family housing due to No 
Recourse to Public Funds (NRPF) and families 
without homes including spend on Bed and 
Breakfast accommodation. 

SR 7.2

17 2 Children’s Unaccompanied 
Asylum Seekers

Medium Director requested independent review of income, 
expenditure and sufficiency.

18 2 Community 
Safety

Gloucestershire 
Fire and Rescue 
(GFRS) 
Expenses

High Review and assessment of the controls over 
claiming expenses in GFRS. This will include 
consideration of the agreed management actions 
from the 2019/20 GFRS Expenses and Service 
Benefits Internal Audit report. 

19 2 Corporate 
Resources

Data Analytics High Undertake a Data Analytical audit of:

i. Duplicate Payments
ii. Change to Supplier Bank Accounts 
iii. Companies House Check 

20 2 Corporate 
Resources

Major IT incident 
management

High To review and assess the plans and processes in 
place to manage a major IT incident.

SR 3.2

21 2 Corporate 
Resources

Supplier 
Management

High A review of the management of ICT suppliers 
following the move to managing a number of 
contracts in house, which replaced the single 
overarching Sopra Steria contract.

SR 3.1

22 2 Corporate 
Resources

Annual 
Governance 
Statement (AGS)

Medium To review the robustness of returns that comprise 
the AGS.

SR 1.1

23 2 Corporate 
Resources

Office 365 
Lessons Learned

Medium To review the role out of the Office 365 project to 
establish any lessons to be learned.

SR 3.1

24 2 Corporate 
Resources

Use of Petty 
Cash and 
Imprest Bank 
Accounts

Medium Fundamental financial system. To review the use of 
petty cash and Imprest Bank Accounts at the 
Council.

P
age 103



AUDIT, RISK AND ASSURANCE – DRAFT INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2022/23

Ref Indicative 
Quarter Entity Audit Risk

Score Proposed Scope Risk 
Register Ref

25 2 Economy, 
Environment, and 
Infrastructure

Highways – 
Value for Money 
Review of a Key 
Supplier Contract

High To review the value for money obtained from a pre-
selected Highways - Key Supplier Contract. 

SR 6.1

26 2 Economy, 
Environment, and 
Infrastructure

Traffic Signals 
Asset 
Management and 
Replacement – 
Follow Up

High To review the Council's position against the 2021/22 
Traffic Signals Asset Management and 
Replacement Internal Audit report 
recommendations. 

Quarter 3 2022/23
27 3 Adults Deaths and 

Discharges
High To review the effectiveness of procedures in place 

following a service user’s death and to assess 
whether over payments are appropriately recouped.

28 3 Adults Direct Payments High A follow-up review is currently being undertaken in 
this area through the 2021/22 Internal Audit Plan. 
The outcome may lead on to specific risk areas for 
review.

SR 7.1

29 3 Adults Gloucestershire 
Industrial 
Services (GIS)

High Specific area of review to be confirmed, following in 
year risk assessment and engagement with 
management. The area of audit will depend on the 
position of current independent reviews of GIS and 
agreed actions. 

SR 7.1

30 3 Children’s Discretionary 
Payments to 
Foster Carers – 
Follow Up

High To review the Council's position against the original 
Discretionary Payments to Foster Carers Internal 
Audit report recommendations. 

SR 7.2
SR 7.5

31 3 Children’s Section 17 – 
Follow Up

High To review the Council's position against the original 
Section 17 Internal Audit report recommendations. 

SR 7.2

32 3 Children’s Education 
Quality 
Assurance 
Framework

Consultancy To develop the three lines of defence roles and 
responsibilities, Internal Audit will provide 
consultancy services to support strengthening of the 
Framework. 

SR 7.4

P
age 104



AUDIT, RISK AND ASSURANCE – DRAFT INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2022/23

Ref Indicative 
Quarter Entity Audit Risk

Score Proposed Scope Risk 
Register Ref

33 3 Corporate 
Resources

Asset Valuation 
Process

High Fundamental financial system. To review and 
assess the process for completing the annual 
statement of asset valuations which is submitted to 
central government.

34 3 Corporate 
Resources

Business Service 
Centre (BSC) 
Payroll 
Processes

High Fundamental financial system. To review and 
assess the processes used in BSC over Payroll.

35 3 Corporate 
Resources

Legal Value for 
Money Review

Consultancy To review the current provision of Legal Services. SR 8.1

36 3 Corporate 
Resources

New Contract 
Management 
System

High To review the effectiveness of the new contract 
management system.

37 3 Corporate 
Resources

Risk 
Management 
Follow Up

High To review the Council's position against the 2021/22 
Risk Management review recommendations.

38 3 Corporate 
Resources

The Health and 
Safety Risk 
Assessment 
Process

Medium To review and assess the process used to perform 
Health and Safety Risk assessments for employees 
working predominantly at home.

39 3 Corporate 
Resources

Operation of the 
Project 
Management 
Office (PMO)

Medium To review and assess the current operation of the 
PMO.

SR 3.1

40 3 Economy, 
Environment, and 
Infrastructure

Decarbonised 
Transport 
Strategy

High To review the effectiveness of the delivery of the 
Decarbonised Transport Strategy.

SR 12.1

41 3 Economy, 
Environment, and 
Infrastructure

Financial 
Controls over 
Waste Recycling 
and Trading

High To review the effectiveness of the financial controls 
over waste recycling and trading through the 
household waste centres. 

SR 12.1

P
age 105



AUDIT, RISK AND ASSURANCE – DRAFT INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2022/23

Ref Indicative 
Quarter Entity Audit Risk

Score Proposed Scope Risk 
Register Ref

42 3 Economy, 
Environment, and 
Infrastructure

M5 Junction 10 
Project Cost 
Reporting

High The audit will focus on reviewing the accuracy and 
timeliness of project cost reporting of the £250m M5 
Junction 10 infrastructure project. 

SR 6.1

43 3 Economy, 
Environment, and 
Infrastructure

Road Safety 
Improvements

High To review the effectiveness of recent delivery of 
road safety improvements.

Quarter 4 2022/23
44 4 Adults Electronic Call 

Monitoring
High To review the effectiveness of monitoring contract 

compliance using the Electronic Call Monitoring 
system.

SR 7.1
SR 7.6

45 4 Children’s Due Diligence 
Quality 
Assurance 
Reviews

Medium To undertake a review of the processes applied by 
Compliance and Quality Assurance Team in 
undertaking due diligence reviews of potential 
external placements.

SR 7.7

46 4 Corporate 
Resources

Adult Social Care 
Debt Collection

High This audit will assess whether debt collection is 
performed in an efficient and effective manner in 
adherence to relevant regulation.

SR 2.8

47 4 Corporate 
Resources

Direct Award 
Single Source 
Contract 
Authorisation

High To review and assess the process for authorising 
direct award single source contracts.

48 4 Corporate 
Resources

Service Delivery 
Efficiency - ICT

High To review the efficiency of ICT Service Delivery.

49 4 Corporate 
Resources

Revised 
Children’s 
Improvement 
Programme (CIP)

Medium To review the revisions to the CIP (ICT) as a result 
of the 2022 Ofsted visit.

SR 5.3

50 4 Economy, 
Environment, and 
Infrastructure

Financial 
Procedures in 
Libraries

High To review the financial procedures in place over 
Libraries in Gloucestershire.

Throughout 2022/23

P
age 106



AUDIT, RISK AND ASSURANCE – DRAFT INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2022/23

Ref Indicative 
Quarter Entity Audit Risk

Score Proposed Scope Risk 
Register Ref

51 Throughout Children’s Local Authority 
(LA) Maintained 
Schools

High A sample of LA Maintained Schools will be selected 
following a risk assessment and discussion with key 
officers. Internal Audit will review the effectiveness 
of the key financial systems and controls in 
operation at these selected schools.

SR7.4

52 Throughout Community 
Safety

Community 
Safety Her 
Majesty’s 
Inspectorate of 
Constabulary 
and Fire & 
Rescue Services 
(HMICFRS) 
Improvement 
Plan

High Consultancy input through independent verification 
that reported improvement action plan milestones 
have been reached. Activity to be aligned to the 
relevant quarterly meetings of the Community 
Safety Improvement Board. 

53 Throughout Council Wide Grants 
Certification and 
Review

High 21 grant returns have currently been identified that 
require Head of ARA sign off within 2022/23. Audit 
review timing will align to the requirements of each 
respective grant determination.

Various

54 Throughout Economy, 
Environment, and 
Infrastructure

Fleet 
Management 
Project

Medium Ongoing consultancy involvement on the Fleet 
Management Project Steering Board.

55 Throughout Counter Fraud Counter Fraud  High Activity streams delivered by the ARA Counter 
Fraud Team (CFT), including but not exclusive to: 
Counter Fraud support; Fraud Investigation and 
Detection; National Fraud Initiative (NFI) activity; 
and Fraud Risk Management. 

P
age 107



AUDIT, RISK AND ASSURANCE – DRAFT INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2022/23

Ref Indicative 
Quarter Entity Audit Risk

Score Proposed Scope Risk 
Register Ref

56 Throughout Support Management and 
Planning

 High Activity streams, including but not exclusive to: Audit 
Management and Planning; Committee reporting 
and attendance; Working Group and Board 
attendance; Annual Governance Statement 
facilitation; Provision of Internal Control or General 
Advice; and Quality Assurance and Improvement 
Programme delivery. 

 

57 Throughout Support Recommendation 
Monitoring

High This allocation enables ARA to monitor 
management’s progress with the implementation of 
Internal Audit recommendations.

 

***The above table reflects the Draft Internal Audit Plan 2022/23 for Gloucestershire County Council only. It excludes ARA activity streams that 
generate an income (such as Academies activity delivery) or a recharge (such as Pensions). 

P
age 108



Audit and Governance Committee
Date: 8th April 2022 Agenda No:

Title of Report: Internal Audit Activity Progress Report 2021/22

Purpose of Report: To inform Members of the progress of Internal Audit activity in 
relation to the agreed 2021/22 Internal Audit Plan for activities 
delivered up to February 2022.

Recommendations: It is recommended that the Committee:

I. Notes the amendments to and progress against the current 
2021/22 Internal Audit Plan; and

II. Notes the assurance opinions provided in relation to the 
effectiveness of the Council’s control environment 
(comprising risk management, control and governance 
arrangements) as a result of the Internal Audit activity 
completed to date.

Officer(s) Contact: Piyush Fatania - Head of Audit Risk Assurance (ARA) and 
Insurance Services  
Tel: 01452 328883
piyush.fatania@gloucestershire.gov.uk 

Alistair Rush - Interim Director of Finance
Tel: 01452 324103
alistair.rush@gloucestershire.gov.uk 

Key Risks Failure to deliver an effective Internal Audit service will prevent an 
independent, objective assurance opinion to be provided to those 
charged with governance that the key risks associated with the 
achievement of the Council’s objectives are being adequately 
controlled. 

Page 109

Agenda Item 10

mailto:piyush.fatania@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:alistair.rush@gloucestershire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Progress report on

2021-2022
Internal Audit Activity

Page 111



2

(1) Introduction

All Councils must make proper provision for Internal Audit in line with the 1972 Local 
Government Act (S151) and the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. The latter 
states that a relevant Council ‘must undertake an effective Internal Audit to evaluate 
the effectiveness of its risk management, control and governance processes, taking 
into account public sector Internal Auditing standards or guidance’. 

The Council’s Internal Audit service is provided by Audit Risk Assurance (ARA) 
under a Shared Service agreement between Gloucestershire County Council, 
Gloucester City Council and Stroud District Council. ARA carries out the work 
required to satisfy this legislative requirement and reports its findings and 
conclusions to management and to this Committee. 

The guidance accompanying the Regulations recognise the Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards 2017 (PSIAS) as representing ‘proper Internal Audit practices’. The 
standards define the way in which the Internal Audit service should be established 
and undertake its operations.

The Internal Audit service is delivered in conformance with the International 
Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing.

(2) Changes within 2022

ARA recognise the challenges facing the Council and local government more widely, 
to deliver high quality services and to meet the expectations of residents and other 
stakeholders.

ARA are firmly committed to helping the Council and its officers to manage their 
risks, to deliver services and to be successful in achieving objectives.

Therefore, ARA have reviewed how we work and how we can best help the Council 
to meet its challenges. We have commenced a journey to initiate improvements in a 
number of areas and, by doing so, improve the service that we provide to the 
Council.

The Committee are asked to note the following changes that will take place within 
2022. These include:

i. Changing the format of ARA activity reports will occur from January 2022. Our 
reports will be more focussed, concise and dynamic, clearly highlighting the 
areas that need to be addressed by management.

ii. The risks identified in ARA reports will be rated using a High, Medium and Low 
categorisation. 

iii. The style of reporting to the Committee will also change in 2022/23. In particular, 
the Internal Audit Progress Report will be split into two. Firstly, the summaries of 
Internal Audit reports will be more concise highlighting just the salient points. 
Secondly the summary of Internal Audit activity will be red, amber or green 
(RAG) rated to show the progress of individual audits:

Page 112



3

- Red will indicate an audit that is unlikely to be completed in-year;
- Amber will indicate a delay to the start of an audit; and
- Green will indicate that an audit is due to commence in the quarter stated in 

the Internal Audit Plan.

iv. From April 2022, ARA will introduce Recommendation Progress Monitoring 
reports. These will be issued by Internal Audit ahead of the Committee, to the 
management responsible for implementing the recommendations. Management 
will then specify the progress made in implementing the recommendations, for 
example implemented, in progress or that more time is required. 

v. The Recommendation Progress Monitoring reports will help management and 
the Committee to monitor progress on recommendation implementation across 
the Council, and to see that Internal Audit reports are being actioned.

vi. The Head of ARA’s Annual Report will be reviewed and updated to be more 
focussed and concise.

(3) Responsibilities 

Management are responsible for establishing and maintaining appropriate risk 
management processes, control systems (financial and non-financial) and 
governance arrangements. 

Internal Audit plays a key role in providing independent assurance and advising the 
Council that these arrangements are in place and operating effectively.

Internal Audit is not the only source of assurance for the Council. There are a range 
of External Audit and inspection agencies as well as management processes which 
also provide assurance. These are set out in the Council’s Code of Corporate 
Governance and its Annual Governance Statement.  

(4) Purpose of this Report

This report on Internal Audit activity summarises key progress and details in relation 
to:

i. The progress against the 2021/22 Internal Audit Plan, including the assurance 
opinions on the effectiveness of risk management and control processes;

ii. The outcomes of the 2021/22 Internal Audit activity delivered during the period 
January 2022 to February 2022; and

iii. Special investigations and counter fraud activity.

Page 113

https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/media/2110047/gcc-code-of-corporate-governance-20-21.pdf
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/media/2110047/gcc-code-of-corporate-governance-20-21.pdf
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/media/2111946/gcc-ags-20-21-final-signed-dec-21.pdf


4

(5) Progress against the 2021/22 Internal Audit Plan, including the 
assurance opinions on risk and control

Appendix 1 provides a summary of 2021/22 audits which have not previously been 
reported to the Audit and Governance Committee.

Appendix 2 contains a list of all the 2021/22 Internal Audit activity undertaken during 
the financial year to date. This includes, where relevant, the assurance opinions on 
the effectiveness of risk management arrangements and control processes in place 
to manage those risks. Appendix 2 also reflects the dates where activity outcomes 
have been presented to the Audit and Governance Committee. 

Definitions of the possible assurance opinions are shown below.

Assurance 
Levels

Risk Identification Maturity Control Environment

Substantial Risk Managed
Service area fully aware of the risks 
relating to the area under review and 
the impact that these may have on 
service delivery, other service areas, 
finance, reputation, Legal, the 
environment, customers, partners, and 
staff.  All key risks are accurately 
reported and monitored in line with the 
Corporate Risk Management Strategy. 

 System Adequacy – 
Robust framework of 
controls ensures that 
there is a high 
likelihood of objectives 
being achieved.

 Control Application – 
Controls are applied 
continuously or with 
minor lapses.

Satisfactory Risk Aware
Service area has an awareness of the 
risks relating to the area under review 
and the impact that these may have on 
service delivery, other service areas, 
finance, reputation, legal, the 
environment, customers, partners, and 
staff. However, some key risks are not 
being accurately reported and 
monitored in line with the Corporate 
Risk Management Strategy.

 System Adequacy – 
Sufficient framework of 
key controls for 
objectives to be 
achieved but, control 
framework could be 
stronger.

 Control Application – 
Controls are applied 
but with some lapses.

Limited Risk Naïve 
Due to an absence of accurate and 
regular reporting and monitoring of the 
key risks in line with the Corporate Risk 
Management Strategy, the service area 
has not demonstrated a satisfactory 
awareness of the risks relating to the 
area under review and the impact that 
these may have on service delivery, 
other service areas, finance, reputation, 
legal, the environment, customers, 
partners, and staff.  

 System Adequacy – 
Risk of objectives not 
being achieved due to 
the absence of key 
internal controls.

 Control Application – 
Significant breakdown 
in the application of 
control.

Page 114



5

(5a) Summary of Internal Audit Assurance Opinions on Risk and Control

The pie charts below show a summary of the risk and control assurance opinions 
arising from the 2021/22 Internal Audit activity undertaken between April 2021 and 
February 2022. Seven 2021/22 Internal Audit activities within this period have 
resulted in assurance opinions on risk and control. 

It is noted that the majority of ARA activity delivered to February 2022 has not 
generated an assurance opinion on risk and control, due to being a grant, 
consultancy or resource support activity. The outcomes from these areas are not 
included in the pie charts. 

Page 115



6

(5b) Limited Control Assurance Opinions 

Where audit activity records that a limited assurance opinion on control has been 
provided, the Audit and Governance Committee may request Senior Management 
attendance at the next meeting of the Committee to provide an update as to the 
actions taken to address the highlighted risks and associated recommendations. 

(5c) Audit Activity where a Limited Control Assurance Opinion has been 
provided 

Between January and February 2022, no limited assurance opinions on control have 
been provided. 

(5d) Satisfactory Control Assurance Opinions

Where audit activity records that whilst an overall satisfactory control assurance 
opinion has been provided, recommendations have been made that would improve 
controls and the Committee can take assurance that improvement actions have been 
agreed with management accordingly. 

(5e) Internal Audit Recommendations

During the 2021/22 period to February 2022 Internal Audit have made 37 
recommendations in total to improve the control environment. 12 of the 
recommendations are of High priority and 25 are of Medium priority. 

100% of Internal Audit recommendations have been accepted by management. 

The Committee can take assurance that all High priority recommendations will 
remain under review by Internal Audit, by obtaining regular management updates, 
until the required action has been fully completed. 

(5f) Risk Assurance Opinions

Between January and February 2022, no limited assurance opinions on risk have 
been provided. 

Where a limited assurance opinion is given, the Council’s Senior Risk Management 
Advisor is provided with the Internal Audit report(s) to enable the prioritisation of risk 
management support. 

(5g) Activity Completion Rate

In line with prior year, the ARA target is to complete and achieve 85% of the Annual 
Internal Audit Plan. This target includes appropriate consideration of any Plan 
changes within the year. 

During the 2021/22 period to February 2022 ARA has finalised 36 activities, which 
will increase further as the year progresses. 

Page 116



7

Appendix 2 details 28 activities as in progress or draft report issued as at February 
2022. In addition, Appendix 2 confirms that Terms of Reference have been issued 
proactively for several audit and consultancy activities due for delivery across the 
year end.  

ARA will continue to engage with the Children’s Services management team in 
recognition of the impact of the Ofsted inspection, remaining flexible in meeting the 
audit needs of the Council. This has required changes to the Audit Plan in 2021/22 
and it is anticipated that these impacts will continue into 2022/23. 

As a consequence of these changes arising from external circumstances, it is 
forecast that the 85% target may not be achieved by the point of the Annual Report 
on Internal Audit Activity 2021/22. The position against this target will continue to be 
reviewed by the service up to the point of Annual Report. 

(6) ARA Activity Breadth – 2021/22 Internal Audit Plan and Other

Members agreed the Internal Audit Plan 2021/22 at the 25th March 2021 Audit and 
Governance Committee meeting. The Internal Audit Plan 2021/22 delivers a range of 
ARA activity across the Council’s Department and Service areas. Activity types 
include:

i. Internal Audit;

ii. Counter fraud activity and fraud or irregularity case review;

iii. Consultancy review or advice;

iv. Grant certification or review; 

v. Data analytics review; and

vi. Resource support for priority areas. 

All of these activity types generate an ARA outcome or conclusion, however only the 
Internal Audit activity stream will result in assurance opinions on risk and control.

When compared to prior years, the Internal Audit Plan 2021/22 includes a higher 
level of non-assurance opinion activity. This is due to the following factors:

i. An increased level of grants certification and review requirements, as a result of 
Covid-19 relevant grant funding streams received by the Council;

ii. Appropriate application of PSIAS requirements, which supports consideration 
and delivery of consultancy review within Internal Audit Plans; and

iii. The changing risks and needs of the Council, evident through the Internal Audit 
Plan 2021/22 planning and consultation process. This has resulted in increased 
consultancy review and advice activities to enable agile and added value 
outcomes from ARA work.

Page 117



8

The above weighting of ARA activity will impact upon the Internal Audit Progress 
Report section 5 and Appendix 2 contents. The quarterly profile of ARA activity 
(including consideration of grant certification deadlines) will also impact the volume 
of activity reported to Committee via the Internal Audit Progress Report. 

Additional activities to date which were not originally within the 2021/22 Internal Audit 
Plan include (but are not exclusive to) five additional grants requiring certification by 
specified deadlines. The new grant activities are confirmed within Appendix 2.

Appendix 2 also reflects any wider non-Plan activities completed by ARA, to ensure 
Audit and Governance Committee awareness. As reported to Committee in 
September 2021, an example of this activity type is:

i. The ongoing work by ARA to build a commercial service offer to Academies, 
including the completion of an Academy pilot internal audit. 

Page 118



Appendix 1

9

Completed 2021/22 Internal Audit Activity delivered between 
January 2022 and February 2022
Summary of Substantial Assurance Opinions on Control

Service Area: Corporate Resources
Audit Activity: Coding Slips Payment Process
Background

Since January 2020 Gloucestershire County Council (GCC) has processed 
invoices where there are no purchase orders using manual coding slips (white 
slips). These contain more information than the previous ‘pink slips’, including the 
names and signatures of approvers and justification for not using a purchase 
order.

White slips were introduced to ensure robust and verifiable authorisation 
processes were in place. They also enable increased scrutiny and monitoring of 
this type of expenditure within the Council. As a result of the Covid-19 pandemic 
and remote working, an online coding form (on a platform called JADU) was also 
introduced for the authorisation of invoices where there is no purchase order. The 
aim was to mitigate a potential backlog of manual white slipped invoices and 
subsequent late payment issues.

Scope

The objectives of the audit were to review:

i. The current systems and procedures for making coding slip invoice 
payments to ensure that they are efficient and well controlled;

ii. Compliance with the coding slips payment process (small white slips and 
online JADU forms) to ensure appropriate authorisation and scrutiny; and

iii. The monitoring and oversight arrangements in place for coding slips.

Risk Assurance – Substantial
Control Assurance – Substantial 

Key Findings

Internal Audit documented the end-to-end coding slips process and can confirm 
that there is adequate separation of duties, appropriate Budget Manager and 
Budget Holder authorisation, monitoring, oversight, escalation and reporting.

Guidance is available on GCC’s intranet (Staffnet) for the shoppers and Budget 
Holders to follow. However, the Exceptions List which details the only 
circumstances when coding slips should be used is held elsewhere on Staffnet. 
The list should either be duplicated in the same area as the other coding slips 
guidance or signposted so that shoppers would easily be able to locate it. 

Page 119



Appendix 1

10

There is a thorough checking process within the Payment Compliance team in the 
Business Service Centre (BSC). It is also well documented as part of the BSC’s 
Standard Operating Procedures (SOP) and is available on a shared drive for other 
BSC staff to follow if necessary.

Prior to the pandemic the only non-purchase order coding slips in use were the 
‘small whites’. Due to enforced home working, the small white slips were 
completed electronically and emailed to the BSC for checking and processing.  It 
was at this time that the JADU online forms were also introduced.  Staffnet 
guidance encourages the use of the JADU form, but the small white slips are still 
being used in parallel. A decision will need to be made as to the optimal solution 
going forward.

Internal Audit tested a small sample of white coding slips and three JADU forms 
that had been processed between 1st July 2021 and 31st September 2021. The 
sample was selected from a broad range of service areas. The coding slips had 
been thoroughly checked within the BSC and all were accurate and in compliance 
with the Exceptions List. A process is in place for taking corrective action for any 
non-compliance identified by the BSC prior to the invoices being sent to Accounts 
Payable for processing and payment.

Four monitoring reports are produced by the Payment Compliance team as part of 
the checking process, namely:  A justification spreadsheet; a problem log; a White 
Slip monthly report; and a JADU submitted and incomplete report. The Finance 
Manager receives full copies of these reports. They are utilised for the purposes of 
monitoring trends as well as acting as an escalation point to challenge any non-
compliance.

Conclusion

Internal Audit review of the coding slips control environment verified that the 
existing processes in place are operating effectively.

Two recommendations have been made. The first was to ensure that parallel 
coding slip processes are not operated indefinitely. The second was to improve the 
nature and location of the guidance on Staffnet which will result in overall improved 
compliance.

Management Actions

The recommendations have been accepted by management and will be 
implemented by 1st September 2022. 

Page 120



Appendix 1

11

Summary of Satisfactory Assurance Opinions on Control

Service Area: Corporate Resources
Audit Activity: Grievance Process
Background

A grievance process is designed to give employees and employers a fair and 
objective system to raise and review serious issues and complaints without bias. A 
formal grievance process procedure should support employees to raise concerns 
relating to a safe working environment without the fear of any negative 
repercussions. 

Grievance procedures help employees against arbitrary decisions of management 
regarding discipline, discharge, promotions or benefits. The procedures also 
provide unions and employers with a formal process for enforcing the provisions of 
their contracts of employment.

A well-structured grievance process benefits both the employer and their 
employees. It can encourage a thorough timely and satisfactory resolution to 
issues highlighted by an employee, helping to avoid lengthy and costly potential 
tribunals. 

Gloucestershire County Council’s grievance procedures are made available to 
officers through Staffnet (the Council’s intranet) and through the Gloucestershire 
Fire and Rescue Service intranet.

Scope

Internal Audit reviewed the Council’s grievance processes, to ensure that these 
are processed, managed, reported and monitored in accordance with the defined 
procedure. This included consideration of information and support provided to 
officers/managers to ensure awareness and appropriate action of the grievance 
procedure. The audit also considered the progression pathway from a complaint to 
a grievance case, to ensure cases are appropriately escalated and reported as a 
grievance.

Risk Assurance – Satisfactory
Control Assurance – Satisfactory

Key Findings

A formal project is in place for the development of grievance and conflict 
management processes. This provides defined governance and reporting 
requirements, ensuring revised processes are effectively reviewed and approved. 

A range of guidance and training have been developed and made available to 
support officers and managers in managing grievances. These are continuing to 
be developed and refined through the grievance project. 

Page 121



Appendix 1

12

A revised Grievance Resolution Process document has been produced which sets 
out the formal procedure for Gloucestershire County Council. The revised process 
describes a three-stage process from informal through to appeal. It is 
recommended that future iterations of the Grievance Resolution Process provide 
further information on the options in place for employees and managers to 
consider grievances at the informal Stage One.

A spreadsheet is used by the Employee Relations Team to record and manage 
grievances and other types of case. Audit sample testing found that the 
spreadsheet was not being kept up to date effectively and it is recommended that it 
is amended to reflect the Grievance Resolution Process more accurately. 

Sample testing also identified that a Grievance Notification Form is not always 
completed for each case. The Grievance Notification Form is a key component of 
the process as it records the detail of the employee’s grievance and is designed to 
make sure the issues are clearly understood.  Arrangements also need to be put in 
place to ensure that the Employees Relations Team retain copies of all 
correspondence and documentation in relation to each case. 

No single or common cause for delays was identified during audit sample testing. 
The following examples of causes were noted: initial difficulties in identifying and 
appointing an independent member of staff to undertake the investigation; delays 
in the employee bringing the grievance providing evidence or information; and the 
employee being absent due to sickness. 

Conclusion

A well-controlled and resourced project is in place to deliver the cultural change 
aimed at better dealing with grievances at an informal stage. Moving forward this 
will become more embedded as the methods of informal resolution are more 
widely used and staff awareness grows.

Extensive arrangements are in place to communicate to employees and managers 
the informal resolutions open to them and the formal procedural requirements 
should these prove to be ineffective. 

The review identified there are appropriate arrangements in place for the 
management of grievances. The revised three-stage process was found to have 
been applied appropriately during audit sample testing by managers and 
investigating officers with the support of the Employee Relations Team. 

Management Actions

No High priority recommendations have been identified, however six Medium 
priority recommendations have been made to improve the process and the current 
arrangements in place and also to prevent unnecessary reputational harm to the 
Council.

Page 122



Appendix 1

13

Summary of Consulting Activity, Grant Certification or Review and Support 
Delivered where no Opinions are provided

Service Area: Economy, Environment and Infrastructure. Community Safety.
Audit Activity: Fleet Management Project
Background

Gloucestershire County Council (GCC) (including Gloucester Fire and Rescue 
Service (GFRS), which is an integral part of GCC) operates a combined fleet of 
approximately 210 vehicles. 121 of which are managed and operated by GFRS 
and the rest by the wider Council. 

A high-level review of GCC fleet management, maintenance and procurements 
operations was undertaken by EDGE public solutions (EDGE) between November 
2020 and March 2021. The EDGE review found that, in essence, the County 
Council was operating two fleet management services in parallel. Although there 
were historic reasons for this and differences between the operation of an 
emergency service in a secure site environment and normal Council operations, 
duplication of effort was noted and provides an opportunity for improvement.

EDGE recommended that: The Council moved to a single fleet service structure 
(Corporate Transport Unit or CTU) to manage both the GCC and GFRS fleets; and 
Appropriate Service Level Agreements (SLA’s) are put in place with all services 
areas, including GFRS.

As a result, a project was established with senior representation from both the 
Economy, Environment, and Infrastructure (EEI) and the Community Safety 
Directorates sitting on the Project Steering Board. The Project Sponsor is the 
Executive Director of EEI.

Scope and Key Findings

ARA representation has been present on the Steering Board within 2021/22 to 
ensure and support good governance throughout the duration of the project.

Conclusion

ARA representation has been warmly appreciated both by the relevant 
representatives of EEI and Community Safety and by the external contractor 
leading the project and other key stakeholders in the project such as Human 
Resources. The project will continue through 2022/23 and ARA involvement will be 
ongoing.

Management Actions

There are no management actions to report.

Page 123



Appendix 1

14

Service Area: Community Safety 
Audit Activity: GFRS Action Plan Follow Up Internal Audits – final Syrian 
Refugee Grant recommendation 
Background 

GFRS Internal Audit Follow Up activity on the GFRS Internal Audit Action Plan 
occurred during 2020/21 and 2021/22. The outcomes were formally reported to 
Audit and Governance Committee through the GFRS Internal Audit Follow Up - 
Progress Reports.

The GFRS Internal Audit Follow Up – Final Progress Report was presented to the 
21st January 2022 Audit and Governance Committee meeting. The report 
confirmed that: 

‘One recommendation (Syrian Refugee Grant recommendation 1) has been 
identified by Internal Audit as in progress and due for full implementation, (through 
the signing and sealing of a contract) in quarter 4 2021/22. 

Verification of recommendation implementation will be provided through the next 
Internal Audit Progress Report to Audit and Governance Committee.’

Scope

To provide assurance to Audit and Governance Committee that Syrian Refugee 
Grant recommendation 1 has been verified as implemented. 

Key Findings

Syrian Refugee Grant recommendation 1 was ‘A formal contract is put in place for 
GARAS, this contact should then be entered on the Contracts Register held by 
Gloucestershire County Council.’

A co-ordinated effort was applied by GFRS, Strategic Finance, Legal and Strategic 
Procurement to complete an EU compliant competitive tender process for the 
Gloucestershire Refugee Resettlement Programme. The outcome was the contract 
award to GARAS Ltd from April 2021 for a period of three years (with the option to 
extend for up to two years). Audit trail supports the tender process and the 
outcome, including decision for the contract award being finalised through 
‘Executive Decision Making by an Officer with Delegated Powers’. 

As at February 2022 confirmation and audit trail has been received from Legal 
Services that the Contract between GFRS and GARAS has been legally signed 
and sealed. Confirmation has also been obtained that the contract has been added 
to the contracts register for Gloucestershire County Council. Therefore, the original 
Internal Audit recommendation has been met.

Conclusion

Syrian Refugee Grant recommendation 1 has been verified as implemented. 

Page 124



Appendix 1

15

Management Actions

No Management Actions are required.

Service Area: Corporate Resources
Audit Activity: Procurement Toolkit Internal Controls Advice
Background

The Procurement Toolkit project sits within the wider Procurement Transformation 
Programme at the Council. A major scoping exercise has been undertaken 
resulting in the creation of the following four work streams to be incorporated and 
developed over three phases:  

Four Work Streams: 

i. Contract Procedures (formerly Contract Standing Orders) – review, 
benchmark and update. Includes Types A-D procurements.

ii. Procurement Toolkit - develop for Types A-D procurements.  Includes 
process flows, procedures, templates, and guidance plus a Quick Guide to 
Procurement. To be located on Staffnet.

iii. Policies related to procurement activity– support Council development on 
social value, modern slavery, equalities and sustainability.

iv. Terms and conditions of contract – develop for goods, services, IT and 
frameworks.

Three Phases:

i. Phase One 

Contract Procedures – covering Types A-D procurements. Current Contract 
Procedures were benchmarked with the sector last year.  They have been 
updated and have been drafted as a two-tier model. The first tier will be the 
procedures as ‘the rules/must dos’ under which the Procurement Toolkit. The 
second tier will be the ‘how to procure’ with processes, guidance, relevant 
policy, core terms and conditions and templates appropriate to each 
procurement Type.

Procurement Toolkit (core areas) for Type A procurements consisting of: 

Stage One:  Pre-planning and Invitation to Tender plus sets of core contract 
terms and conditions.

Stage Two: Selection Questionnaire and Tender Evaluation:  Includes 
investigating the feasibility of online tender evaluation.   

Page 125



Appendix 1

16

Stage Three:  Award and Post Award actions

ii. Phase Two

Type A Procurement Toolkit - additional areas and development of Type A 
Toolkit on Staffnet.

Procurement Toolkit for Types B-D procurements - development including 
contract terms and conditions.

Further development of procurement related policies including social value and 
modern slavery as required.

iii. Phase Three

Supplier Journey – including guidance on how to do business with the Council; 
where to look for opportunities; what to expect when tendering or submitting a 
quote; and minimum requirements.

Scope and Key Findings

ARA reviewed draft documentation and provided challenge and written feedback to 
the project lead in relation to activities completed in phase one, specifically the 
new Contract Procedure Rules.

Internal Audit feedback was noted and was considered by the wider project team 
with adjustments made to the Contract Procedure Rules where necessary.

Conclusion

The Procurement Toolkit project is ongoing into 2022/23, and ARA feedback will 
continue as requested.

Management Actions

The were no specific Management Actions in this regard.

Service Area: Grant Certification
Audit Activity: Lost Sales Fees and Charges Claim Three
Background

Covid-19 has impacted the Council’s ability to generate revenues in several 
service areas as a result of lockdown, government restrictions, and social 
distancing measures related to the pandemic. 

Page 126



Appendix 1

17

The former Ministry of Housing, Communities, and Local Government (MHCLG), 
now the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (DLUHC), 
introduced an income loss scheme to help compensate for a proportion of the 
irrecoverable and unavoidable losses from sales, fees and charges income 
generated in the delivery of services, in the financial year 2020/21.

There were a total of three claims during 2020/21 for the periods of April 2020 to 
July 2020, August 2020 to November 2020, and December 2020 to March 2021. 

The three claims were also subject to a reconciliation process. This was to be 
completed after the submission of the third claim to account for losses claimed for 
in the early part of the scheme that were ultimately recoverable, and others where 
recoverability was originally considered possible. 

Scope

To review the Lost Sales, Fees and Charges (LSFC) claim three (December 2020 
to March 2021) and provide assurance that the claim had been submitted in line 
with the guidance from the DLUHC.

Key Findings

The records supplied by the Council Strategic Finance Team identified that 
applicable loss income in 2020/21 under the Lost Sales, Fees and Charges 
scheme claim three totalled £1,437,781.

Income budgets had been correctly accounted within the claim for Economy, 
Environment, and Infrastructure (EEI) and Corporate Resources and remained 
consistent with the income budget used in LSFC claim two.

Internal Audit selected and reviewed three service areas EEI, Regulatory Services 
and Central Services (Children’s Services) accounting for £1,109,763 of applicable 
losses (77.18% of total applicable losses). Testing was undertaken to ensure that 
the budget had been correctly calculated. No issued were identified for this area.

In addition and for the sampled services, testing was undertaken to ensure that all 
lost income recorded was: 

i. As shown within the Council’s financial management system (SAP); 
ii. In accordance with the three principals of the scheme; and 
iii. Within the relevant period of the claim (December 2020 to March 2021).

Actual income received for the claim period, as shown within the Council’s 
Financial Management System, had been correctly accounted for in line with the 
schemes guidance, for EEI and Corporate Resources.

The overall income budget for Central Services was adjusted from the figures used 
as part of claim two. The budgets for the Music Service and Education Inclusion 
had been removed as a loss of income was not included within the claim for these 
services. A further budget for Advisory Teaching Service (ATS) was included 
within the claim.

Page 127



Appendix 1

18

Due to the changes in respect of the overall income budget for Central Services, 
the 5% deduction rate to be charged against the grant changed from £792,869 to 
£776,822. Internal Audit can confirm this was taken into account and deducted 
correctly from the grant.

Internal Audit discussed whether reductions in expenditure had been considered 
and applied when identifying the values of lost income for Education Services. The 
Finance Business Partner stated that it was not possible to easily distinguish 
between the expenditure relating to statutory provision and that relating to traded 
services which was where a loss of income had occurred. It was, therefore, not 
possible for Internal Audit to fully confirm that the requirements of the scheme had 
been complied with and that savings in expenditure had been taken into account 
for Education Psychology and ATS (as part of the wider Central Services). The 
cost centres (two of the four claimed against) that this related to stood at a total 
claim value of £223,160 out of the overall claim three amount of £1,437,781.

Internal Audit confirmed that the parameters set out in the formula for the scheme 
have been correctly applied to the applicable losses claimed for in this period 
(December 2020 to March 2021). GCC claimed the amount of £1,090,365 after the 
required deductions (in line with the claim criteria and subsequent changes to the 
income budgets) had been made to the original calculated loss of £1,437,781. 

Conclusion

The Council submitted a Lost Sales, Fees and Charges claim for £1,090,365 under 
the scheme for December 2020 to March 2021 (claim three).

Internal Audit’s review confirmed that for the sampled areas within claim three, the 
claimed amounts of lost income were in accordance with the government guidance 
with the exception of Central Services.

The actual losses for two cost centres within Education Services could not be fully 
confirmed as claimed correctly. The Finance Business Partner stated that the 
expenditure relating to statutory and traded services was not distinguishable 
therefore, it could not be confirmed whether expenditure savings had been made.  

Management Actions

No Management Actions are required.

Page 128



Appendix 1

19

Summary of Special Investigations and Counter Fraud Activities

Current Status 

The ARA Counter Fraud Team (CFT) has received fifteen new referrals in 2021/22 to 
date and continued to work on eight cases brought forward from previous years.

The service areas of the cases referred to Internal Audit within 2021/22 to date are 
categorised as follows: Adults (5); Children’s (3); Corporate (1); County Wide (1); 
Community Safety (2); and Economy, Environment and Infrastructure (3).

Nine of the fifteen in year referrals have been closed. Eight of those closed cases 
have previously been reported to the Audit and Governance Committee. 

The ninth closed case related to an agency employee who was found to be working 
for two Councils at the same time. Working for multiple employers is not in itself a 
criminal offence. In this case whilst there were no concerns about the quantity and 
quality of work provided to Gloucestershire County Council, there were concerns 
about the total number of hours a day the individual was working. Reviewed audit 
trail confirmed that most days the individual was working in excess of 15 hours 
across the two Councils. Following discussions between the line manager and the 
individual it was agreed that their working hours, in total across both Councils, would 
be capped to 50 hours per week. Additional monitoring has also been introduced to 
ensure that this requirement is adhered to. Where staff are employed through an 
agency it is difficult to identify multiple employments and therefore the system is 
reliant on having robust checks and balances in place to monitor working patterns, 
expenses claimed, and outputs produced.

In respect of the eight prior year cases, seven have been previously reported to 
Audit and Governance Committee.

The outstanding open cases will be reported to the Audit and Governance 
Committee on their conclusion.

Many of the cases referred to Internal Audit involve intricate detail and Police 
referral. This invariably results in a delay before the investigation can be classed as 
closed and reported.

Many potential attempted frauds are intercepted. This is due to a combination of 
local knowledge and credible national counter-fraud communications (including 
those from the National Anti-Fraud Network (NAFN)) being swiftly cascaded to 
teams within the Council, to support fraud awareness and prevention.

The CFT continues to provide support and guidance to Council staff in respect of 
Interviews Under Caution, court file preparation and taking witness statements where 
required.

Page 129



Appendix 1

20

National Fraud Initiative (NFI)

Internal Audit continues to support the NFI which is a biennial data matching 
exercise administered by the Cabinet Office. The data collections for the 2021/22 
exercise were uploaded to the Cabinet Office between October and December 2020. 
The data matching reports resulting from the data upload were released from mid-
January 2021 onwards. 

The full NFI timetable can be found using the link available on GOV.UK – 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-fraud-initiative-timetables

Examples of data sets produced include insurance, payroll, creditors, pensions, blue 
badges and concessionary bus passes. Not all matches are investigated but where 
possible, all recommended matches are reviewed by either the appropriate service 
area or in some cases ARA. Any irregularities identified will be reviewed by the CFT. 

To date and of the total 12,215 matches, 2,498 matches have been reviewed and 29 
are being investigated. However, it should be noted that some teams may be 
reviewing the matches offline and have yet to update the NFI site. The areas 
reviewed so far include pensions, payroll to payroll and duplicate creditors. No 
specific issues have been reported as identified.

Page 130

https://www.nfi.gov.uk/r/34AA62E5BC1349DFA38F24BE5DCADC53
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-fraud-initiative-timetables


Appendix 2

Audit and Governance Committee 

8th April 2022

Progress Report including Assurance Opinions

Department Activity Name Priority Activity Status Risk Opinion Control Opinion
Reported to Audit and 

Governance Committee
Comments

Council Wide The Assurance Framework 1 Planned Brought forward from 20/21 plan. Consultancy. 

Council Wide Cyber Security 1 Planned Brought forward from 20/21 plan. Terms of Reference 

issued. Activity to start in March 22. 

Council Wide Technology Procurement 1 Planned Brought forward from 20/21 plan. Terms of Reference 

issued.

Council Wide Procurement - Over Threshold 1 Deferred

Council Wide Procurement - Off-Contract Spend 1 Deferred

Council Wide Duplicate Payments 1 Deferred

Council Wide Change to Supplier Bank Accounts 1 Deferred

Council Wide Companies' House Check 1 Deferred

Council Wide VAT Registration Number 1 Audit in Progress Data Analytics Strategy - data analytics review. 

Council Wide COVID emergency funding grant 20/21 2 Draft Report Issued

Council Wide COVID emergency funding grant 21/22 2 Draft Report Issued

Corporate Resources Complaints Process 2 Final Report Issued Satisfactory Satisfactory 28/09/2021 Brought forward from 20/21 plan.

Corporate Resources GCC usage of CCTV in compliance with legislation - Limited Assurance 

Follow Up

1 Audit in Progress

Corporate Resources Coding Slips Payment Process 1 Final Report Issued Substantial Substantial 08/04/2022

Corporate Resources Payroll Standing Data 2 Final Report Issued Satisfactory Satisfactory 21/01/2022 Brought forward from 20/21 plan.

Corporate Resources Sopra Steria Exit Strategy 1 Cancelled Brought forward from 20/21 plan. Audit activity 

cancelled based on level of senior management 

review/assurance delivery and the updated position. 

New Digital and ICT Service launched in April 2021, 

alongside the new enterprise support partner 

(Cantium). 
Corporate Resources Grievance Process 1 Final Report Issued Satisfactory Satisfactory 08/04/2022 Brought forward from 20/21 plan.

Corporate Resources Lost Fees and Charges 20/21 - Claim Three 2 Final Report Issued Not Applicable Not Applicable 08/04/2022 Grant review. 

Corporate Resources Lost Fees and Charges 21/22 2 Audit in Progress Grant review. 

Corporate Resources Mapping The Procurement Sourcing Pools 2 Final Report Issued Not Applicable Not Applicable 21/01/2022 Consultancy.

Corporate Resources The Risk Management Framework 1 Final Report Issued Not Applicable Not Applicable 08/04/2022 Consultancy. The full report is a separate item on the 

08/04/2022 Audit & Governance Committee meeting 

agenda. 
Corporate Resources The Debt Collection Process (Adult Social Care) 1 Deferred Deferred to 22/23 due to Covid-19 impact and staff 

capacity. With request and agreement from the 

Director of Finance and the Executive Director of Adult 

Social Care and Public Health.

Corporate Resources The Procurement Model and Transformation Plan 1 Cancelled Audit cancelled in Q4 21/22, due to ongoing 

restructure and review within Strategic Procurement. 

Up to date procurement risk themes have been 

considered and are proposed through the Draft 

Internal Audit Plan 22/23.
Corporate Resources Procurement Toolkit Internal Controls Advice 2 Final Report Issued Not Applicable Not Applicable 08/04/2022 New Activity. Consultancy.

Corporate Resources The Whistleblowing Framework 2 Final Report Issued Not Applicable Not Applicable 21/01/2022 Consultancy.

Corporate Resources BT Network Upgrade 1 Planned ICT Audit Needs Assessment 21/22 outcome. Agreed 

at the Sept 21 Digital and ICT Senior Management 

Team meeting. Terms of Reference issued. Activity to 

start in March 22. 

Corporate Resources End User Device Management 1 Planned ICT Audit Needs Assessment 21/22 outcome. Agreed 

at the Sept 21 Digital and ICT Senior Management 

Team meeting. Terms of Reference issued. Activity to 

start in April 22.

Corporate Resources PSN accreditation 1 Audit in Progress ICT Audit Needs Assessment 21/22 outcome. Agreed 

at the Sept 21 Digital and ICT Senior Management 

Team meeting. 

Data Analytics Strategy - data analytics review. 

Deferral request to Q2 22/23. This is due to the 

position of the SAP procurement & implementation 

project and to make best use of ARA resources at an 

appropriate point in time.

Grant review. Outcome for the 20/21 and 21/22 return 

review consolidated into one ARA report. 

Page 1 of 4

P
age 131



Appendix 2

Audit and Governance Committee 

8th April 2022

Progress Report including Assurance Opinions

Department Activity Name Priority Activity Status Risk Opinion Control Opinion
Reported to Audit and 

Governance Committee
Comments

Corporate Resources Project Management 1 Planned Part of the draft ICT Audit Needs Assessment 21/22 

reviewed by the Sept 21 Digital and ICT Senior 

Management Team meeting. Potential for review to be 

deferred to 22/23, based on risk assessment. 

Corporate Resources Service Desk 1 Deferred Part of the draft ICT Audit Needs Assessment 21/22 

reviewed by the Sept 21 Digital and ICT Senior 

Management Team meeting. Review deferred to 

22/23, based on risk assessment. 

Corporate Resources Change Management 1 Planned ICT Audit Needs Assessment 21/22 outcome. Agreed 

at the Sept 21 Digital and ICT Senior Management 

Team meeting. Terms of Reference issued. Activity to 

start in March 22. 

Corporate Resources Supplier Management 1 Deferred Part of the draft ICT Audit Needs Assessment 21/22 

reviewed by the Sept 21 Digital and ICT Senior 

Management Team meeting. Review deferred to 

22/23, based on risk assessment. 

Corporate Resources Disposal of Assets (Vehicles) - Limited Assurance Follow Up 1 Final Report Issued Satisfactory Satisfactory 21/01/2022

Corporate Resources ITDR - Limited Assurance Follow Up 1 Planned Brought forward from 20/21 plan. Terms of Reference 

issued. Activity to start in April 22.

Corporate Resources Asset Replacement Programme-Windows 10 upgrade – roll out of new 

devices 

1 Audit in Progress Brought forward from 20/21 plan.

Corporate Resources Asset Replacement Programme-Windows 10 upgrade – collection and 

disposal of end of life devices 

1 Audit in Progress Brought forward from 20/21 plan.

Corporate Resources JADU eforms 1 Audit in Progress Brought forward from 20/21 plan. Draft report to be 

issued in April 22. 

Adult Services GIS - Establishment audit 1 Deferred
Activity originally held in 21/22 plan with risk 

assessment updated in year with senior management. 

Up to date risk themes have been considered and are 

proposed through the Draft Internal Audit Plan 22/23.

Adult Services Out of County-cross charging for sexual health 2 Draft Report Issued Brought forward from 20/21 plan. 

Adult Services Carer Assessments 2 Audit in Progress

Adult Services Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards 2 Planned

Adult Services Investment in OSJ Homes 2 Planned

Adult Services Premium for Care Providers 1 Final Report Issued Not Applicable Not Applicable 28/09/2021 Brought forward from 20/21 plan. Resource support.

Adult Services Section 117 Placements 2 Audit in Progress

Adult Services Use of LiquidLogic 1 Planned

Adult Services Covid-19 Test and Trace Service Support 1 Final Report Issued Not Applicable Not Applicable 28/09/2021 Grant certification. 

Adult Services Disabled Facilities Grant 1 Final Report Issued Not Applicable Not Applicable 21/01/2022 Grant certification. 

Adult Services Blue Badge Grant 1 Final Report Issued Not Applicable Not Applicable 28/09/2021 Grant certification. 

Adult Services Community Capacity Grant 1 Final Report Issued Not Applicable Not Applicable 28/09/2021 Grant certification. 

Adult Services Community Testing Funding - Grant 1 Final Report Issued Not Applicable Not Applicable 21/01/2022 New Activity. Grant certification. 

Adult Services Client Affairs - Limited Assurance Follow Up 1 Planned

Adult Services LiquidLogic - ICT security review (ERIC replacement) 1 Cancelled In year risk assessment completed. Use of LiquidLogic 

review prioritised.

Children's Services High Needs 2 Cancelled Risk consultation completed with the new Director of 

Education in Q3 21/22. Risk themes to be considered 

within 22/23 risk based audit planning.
Children's Services No Recourse to Public Funds 2 Audit in Progress Brought forward from 20/21 plan. Target for draft 

report to be issued in April 22. 

Children's Services Independent Reviewing Officers 2 Planned Brought forward from 20/21 plan.

Children's Services Social Work Academy 2 Final Report Issued Not Applicable Not Applicable 21/01/2022 Brought forward from 20/21 plan.

Page 2 of 4

P
age 132



Appendix 2

Audit and Governance Committee 

8th April 2022

Progress Report including Assurance Opinions

Department Activity Name Priority Activity Status Risk Opinion Control Opinion
Reported to Audit and 

Governance Committee
Comments

Children's Services Schools internal audit 21/22 (Local Authority Maintained Schools) 1 Audit in Progress Schools audit outcomes to be reported in the 21/22 

Internal Audit Annual Report.

Children's Services Foster Carer Bandings and Payments 2 Deferred Deferred due to impact of Ofsted visit timing. To be 

considered within 22/23 risk based audit planning

Children's Services Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub 2 Deferred Deferred due to impact of Ofsted visit timing. Risk 

themes to be considered within 22/23 risk based audit 

planning

Children's Services PACE Protocol 1 Audit in Progress

Children's Services Panel Arrangements 2 Audit in Progress

Children's Services Quality Assurance Framework - Education 2 Deferred Consultancy. Risk themes to be considered within 

22/23 risk based audit planning

Children's Services School Admissions 2 Draft Report Issued Original draft report issued Jan 22. Goal for report to 

be finalised via Children's SLT on 31/03/2022.

Children's Services Troubled Families - first review 2 Final Report Issued Not Applicable Not Applicable 21/01/2022 Grant review. 

Children's Services Troubled Families - second review 2 Planned Grant review. Audit due to be delivered and reported in 

the last week of March 22. 

Children's Services Adoption Support Fund Assurance Statement 2 Final Report Issued Not Applicable Not Applicable 28/09/2021 Grant review. 

Children's Services Youth Offending Service 2 Audit in Progress

Children's Services European Union Settlement Scheme (EUSS) 1 Final Report Issued Not Applicable Not Applicable 28/09/2021 New Activity. Grant certification. 

Children's Services Additional Home to School Transport Grant 1 Planned New Activity. Grant certification. Activity planning in 

progress with the Strategic Finance and Transport 

teams.

Children's Services Unregulated Placements and Packages of Support (Fostering) - Limited 

Assurance Follow Up

1 Draft Report Issued Original draft report issued Nov 21. Goal for report to 

be finalised via Children's SLT on 31/03/2022.

Children's Services Section 17 spend including No Recourse to Public Funds (NRPF) - Limited 

Assurance Follow Up

1 Draft Report Issued Original draft report issued in August 21. Updated 

report to be finalised by Children's SLT (SLT date to 

be confirmed). 

Children's Services Direct Payments - Limited Assurance Follow Up 1 Audit in Progress

Children's Services Recruitment, Development and Retention of Foster Carers 2 Final Report Issued Substantial Satisfactory 21/01/2022 Brought forward from 20/21 plan.

Children's Services Transition from Children’s to Adults Services 2 Planned Brought forward from 20/21 plan.

Children's Services Discretionary Payments to Foster Carers - Limited Assurance Follow Up 1 Planned Terms of Reference issued.

Children's Services Unregulated Placements and Packages of Support (Commissioning) - 

Limited Assurance Follow Up

1 Audit in Progress

Children's Services Pilot - Academy internal audit 1 Final Report Issued Not Applicable Not Applicable 28/09/2021 New Activity.  

Economy, Environment and 

Infrastructure

West Cheltenham Transport Improvement Scheme (WCTIS) 1 Audit in Progress Brought forward from 20/21 plan.

Economy, Environment and 

Infrastructure

Library Management System 1 Audit in Progress Brought forward from 20/21 plan.

Economy, Environment and 

Infrastructure

Delivery of the Local Flood Risk Management Strategy 2 Planned

Economy, Environment and 

Infrastructure

Energy from Waste contract 1 Planned

Economy, Environment and 

Infrastructure

Fleet Management 1 Final Report Issued Not Applicable Not Applicable 08/04/2022 Consultancy input through ARA attendance at the 

Fleet Management Project Steering Board within 

21/22. Up to date risk position considered within 22/23 

risk based audit planning.
Economy, Environment and 

Infrastructure

Local Transport Capital Funding 1 Final Report Issued Not Applicable Not Applicable 21/01/2022 Grant certification. 

Economy, Environment and 

Infrastructure

Local Transport Capital Block Funding Pothole and Challenge Fund 1 Final Report Issued Not Applicable Not Applicable 28/09/2021 Grant certification. 

Economy, Environment and 

Infrastructure

National Productivity Investment Fund 1 Final Report Issued Not Applicable Not Applicable 28/09/2021 Grant certification. 

Economy, Environment and 

Infrastructure

Additional Highways Maintenance 1 Final Report Issued Not Applicable Not Applicable 28/09/2021 Grant certification. 

Page 3 of 4

P
age 133



Appendix 2

Audit and Governance Committee 

8th April 2022

Progress Report including Assurance Opinions

Department Activity Name Priority Activity Status Risk Opinion Control Opinion
Reported to Audit and 

Governance Committee
Comments

Economy, Environment and 

Infrastructure

Bus Subsidy Ring-Fenced (Revenue) Grant 1 Final Report Issued Not Applicable Not Applicable 21/01/2022 Grant certification. 

Economy, Environment and 

Infrastructure

Growth Hub 1 Final Report Issued Not Applicable Not Applicable 28/09/2021 Grant certification. 

Economy, Environment and 

Infrastructure

EU Transition Business Readiness 1 Final Report Issued Not Applicable Not Applicable 28/09/2021 Grant certification. 

Economy, Environment and 

Infrastructure

Emergency Active Travel - Claim Two 1 Cancelled Audit cancelled. Confirmation obtained that audit 

certification not required for claim two. 

Economy, Environment and 

Infrastructure

Supplemental Growth Hub 1 Final Report Issued Not Applicable Not Applicable 28/09/2021 New Activity. Grant certification. 

Economy, Environment and 

Infrastructure

A46 Coopers Hill Repairs Grant 1 Final Report Issued Not Applicable Not Applicable 28/09/2021 New Activity. Grant certification. 

Economy, Environment and 

Infrastructure

Transport Infrastructure Project Cost Reporting – M5J10 1 Planned

Economy, Environment and 

Infrastructure

Procurement of Short Term Transport Arrangements for Social Care Users 

Limited Assurance Follow Up

1 Audit in Progress Brought forward from 20/21 plan. Draft report to be 

issued in March 22. 

Economy, Environment and 

Infrastructure

Traffic Signals – Asset Management and Replacement 2 Final Report Issued Satisfactory Limited 28/09/2021 Brought forward from 20/21 plan.

Community Safety Business Fire Safety 2 Final Report Issued Not Applicable Not Applicable 21/01/2022 Brought forward from 20/21 plan.

Community Safety Cultural Review 1 Planned Brought forward from 20/21 plan.

Community Safety Competency and Training Record retention within GFRS 1 Deferred Audit deferred, due to the updated timing of the 

HMICFRS review in 21/22. Area to be considered in 

the 22/23 risk based audit planning exercise.
Community Safety Achievement of the Communities Business Continuity Improvement Plan by 

GFRS

2 Planned

Community Safety Operational Policy Review Process 2 Deferred Audit deferred, due to the updated timing of the 

HMICFRS review in 21/22. Area to be considered in 

the 22/23 risk based audit planning exercise.
Community Safety Fire and Rescue Authorities grant 1 Final Report Issued Not Applicable Not Applicable 28/09/2021 Grant certification. 

Community Safety GFRS Action Plan Follow Up Internal Audits 1 Final Report Issued Not Applicable Not Applicable 21/01/2022 All GFRS follow up audit activity is reported to the 

Audit and Governance Committee separately. The 

final update report is included in the January 22 

Committee agenda. One action remaining was regards 

the Syrian Refugee Grant and the relevant outcome is 

contained within 08/04/2022 Internal Audit Progress 

Report Appendix 1. 

Pensions Pensions Information and Cyber Security 1 Audit in Progress Brought forward from 20/21 plan. 

Pensions Ghost Pensioners 1 Draft Report Issued Brought forward from 20/21 plan. 

Pensions Hyman’s Employer Asset Tracking (HEAT) process 1 Draft Report Issued

Pensions Management of LGPS (21/22 Annual Governance Statement support) 1 Planned Activity need in discussion with relevant Head of 

Service. 

Page 4 of 4

P
age 134


	Agenda
	5 Minutes of the previous meeting
	6 Grant Thornton Audit Plan for GCC & Pension Fund
	Glos PF 2021-22 draft audit plan - for client

	7 Grant Thornton Audit Progress Report
	8 Risk Management Review Report
	9 Draft Internal Audit Plan 2022/23
	ageda item 9 GCC Draft Internal Audit Plan v2.2

	10 Internal Audit Activity Progress Report
	Progress Report on Internal Audit Activity v2.0
	Spreadsheet v1.0


